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Dear Shareholders

Im pleased to say we posted another

solid performance in contributing to

womens health worldwide

FHC remains the innovator

and industry leader

maintaining distirKtive

advantagi in sales outreach

and training

In addition the FC2 Female

Condom is the only female

condom approved by the

US FDA as method of

preventing pregnarn

HIV/AIDS and other scxually

transmitted infections

C2 has been deared by the

World Health Organiiation for

purchase by UN agencies

As awareness of womens health and family ola inina issue

continued to grow exponentially the Company through

increasing visibility and access to the FC2 Female ondom

consolidated our role as leading player in bringing women

greater choice and control over their reproductive lives both

in the and inter iationally

Our solid financial performance permits the Company to

ra idly expand production capacity as needed and provide

education and training regarding reproductive health and

STls/HIV/AIDS prevention at no cost to or public sector

partners

Ihe Female Health Company is proud and delighted to

implement prograr that contribute to womens health

globally and eonurrently reduce hcalthare costs

We particularly pleased that Motley Foo/ named us one

of Americas best public companies br oui con ributi to

healthc are and return to shareholders truly publiclprivatc

partnership

We sincerely iank our employees for their skill and dedica ic

and our share olders for their support in making this happen

OB Pa rih

Chairman of th Board

The Female Health ompany
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OUR COMMITMENTS

The Company announced th we ae delivering on

our commitments made at the 2012 London Summit

on Family Plannmg hose commitmc nts ndude

To aggregate ourchases from all major public sector

buyers to establish the ice for sales the succeed

ing year based on volume

To award major public sector purch se with 12

equal to 5o of their total annual units purchased at

no cost to the purchas rs nd

lo spend $14 million on training aac eduation over

the penod from 2013 through 2018

In FY2013 the company spent $1.5 miilion on educa

tion and training and conducted and or contrlbL ted

to 140 training sessions in eight countries An et

mated 2044 pe ple participated in these session

Ihe ompany plans to spend $2.5 mill on on edu

tion and traininq in FY20 14

London Summit Recap

201 2s tondon Summit on ramily Planning sponsored

by the Bill Melinda Gates Foundation and the

Government established the Family Planning

1020 programThe P2020 goal is to increase access

to contraceptives to an additiona 120 miflion

women in 69 deveoping countries by 2020 Funding

commitments of $46 billion are in place to 6nan
the proqram Female condoms are the only product

whose use is initiated by women that ovides dual

protection against STIs including HIV/AIDS and

unintended piegnancy We believe FC2 will make

significant contribution to P2020

Ink nor of HE recently expande Ma/opec ri plant in Koala Limp ir SUPPORT booth cit Conference NOPE

the Fcmale Icalth ornpany \nnual Report 2013
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The Company and SUPPORT ako garnered Advcrtonais on Global Fr mak Con torn in South Afre

an impressive amount of mternationai press lye1itu and Urn/a inewspapcrs

coverage during the year Newspaner art des national ndio and seseral ational

television news itori son Global leniale Condom Day in

Several artick in The Southern Afar at NGO Network SAN
Kenya

GONeT on Global Female Condo Day the launh of our

SUPPORT website and musical supei star Zahra Universs Molawi Daily limes artide on Global Female Condom Day

call for inresed access to female cot doms
onc hour inter ktv TV program on Malawi Neuoral TV

June article in the ii/y News South Africa on FC2 MBC which featured panel with two users an 12
presence at th South African AIDS Conference implementer and qovernment official answerin viewers

phone in questions
June Parents Magazine cover story and in depth interview

with family planning advoc rte Imily Karechio An August 12 ints rview on RFV Utrc cht The Nctherlar ds

with HCs ucie van Mens Dircctor of Program Development
Live phone radio shows about 12 on wtional radio Zimbabwe

and SUPPORJ about the advantages of the female condom

An artkle in/rnpactmaqazine on empowering women vvith total reach 100000 citi7ens in Utrecht

tI female condom
Articles in tambias Post and Dries cw paper about Global

TV intersiew ii ambia 7BNC1 about irale cdoms rmal endom

Female Her th Company Annud pm 2013
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FC2 COLLEGE CAMPUS
PROGRAM

In th US the Company launched

the pilot loran 12 College Campus

Proqr the Northeast Twelve

participating institutions were given

mini grant to begin impleme fling

programming on their campuses with

institutions completing the online

trammg program and/or rticipating

in rson trainings held in Boston

Grant were awarded based on each

schools mtcntion to raise awareness

oland access to LU on campus

second phase of the College Campus

Program nvolved lg institutions in

the South/Southwest Institutions

participating in thc program included

Culgate University Tulane University

and Duke Uriiverity plus student

groups from institutions such as

Boston College

SUPPORT AT THE WOMEN
DELiVER CONFERENCE
KUALA LUMPUR

The tnternaflon Women Dehver

Conference was ield May 28 30

in Kuala Malaysia lhs con

ferencs was one of the largest gath

erincjs of policymakrs advocates

and rese 3rchc rs fouised rxclusively

on worn ns health and empower

mc nt bringing togcther over 500

participa 3ts from zg countries

Attentioi had been drawn to the

global ch 311nge of fleeting family

planning ieeds of 120 million women

by the yar 2020 since last years

London ummit wheie 69 ountries

made cur lmitn3ents increase access

to fariiily planning The Female Health

Company/SUPPORI the only private

sector del gate to ame commitment

during th Londor Summit attended

the conference and conducted edu

ation an outreach activit es And

UPF DPI rinouned it tnership

with the obal ItTakes rwocarnpaign

TEXT MESSAGE PROGRAM

The Company mt oduced text

Message Piogram for the US market

By texting findFC2 to 87/ 877

potenti 31 ustomnc rs cive

prompts to nt their address

intersrction or ziP od alter

whim the nears st location at

which the C2 can be buns will

be displayed If there is no los 3tion

near the address provided the

customer pr rnpted to try again

or to find the product onlin at

link to Walgres ns C2 page he

text messaging system has rnobl

landing paoe that contains basic

information on where to fmnc

and how to use it

the Text ssaqe Program is bring

ussd by our partners ir the National

male Condom Coalition br thc

outreach including graphics for

ocial media platform

ttF Sr dr

Increasing visibility and access to the FC2 Female Condom
consolidated our role as leading player in bnnging women

greater choice and control over their reproductive lives

both in the US and nternationafly

Initial reports have been vsry P5 sitive

and thc Company intends to stream

line tF process and open up the

grants nationally Applications for

the2ol4roundofgrantsaredue

to

by March 12014 guidelines can be

viswed on the 12 College Health

Pige on our training program

website

he Fr ma alth nipany ial Report 2013
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Safe Harbor statement under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995

The statements in this report which are not historical fact are forwardlooking statements as that term is defined

in the Prlvate Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 Forwardlooking statements in this report include statements

regarding the Companys planned spending on education and training in fiscal 2014 underlying demand for FC2

possible options to expand manufacturing capacity and the continuation of cash dividends in future periods

Forwardlooking statements can also he identified by the use of forwardlooking words or phrases such as antici

pate7believe could7 e.xp.ect7 intend.7 may7 opportunity plan7 predict7 potential7 estimate7 wiil7 would

or the negative of these terms or other words of similar meaning These statements are based upon the Companys

current pins and strategies and reflect the Companys current assessment of the risks and uncertainties related

to its business and are made as of the date of this report The Company assumes no obligation to update any

forwarlooking statements contained in this report as result of new information or future events develop

ments or circumstances Such forvvardiooking statements are inherently subject to known and unknbwn tisks and

uncertainties The Companys actual results and future developments could dlffer mrteriaily from the results or

developments expressed in or implied by these forwardlooking statements Factors that may cause actual results

to differ materially from those contemplated by such forwardlooking statements include but are not limited to

the following product demand and market acceptance competition in the Companys markets .and the risk of new

competitors and new competitive produc.t introductions the Companys reliance on its international partners in the

consumer sector and on the level of spending on the FC2 Female Condom by country governments global donors

and other public health organizations in the global public sector the econ.omic and business environment and

the impact of government pressures risks involved ln doing business on an international level including currency

risks regulatory req uirem ents political risks export restrictions and other trade barriers the Companys production

capacity effic.iency and sup.ply constraints .and other risks detailed in the Companys press releases shareholder

communications and Securities and Exchange Commission filings including the Companys Form 0th for the fiscal

year ended September 30 2013 Actual events affecting the Company and the impact of such events on the

Companys operations may vary from those currently anticipated



Recved SEC

JAN 292014

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISgtOftDC 20549

Washington D.C 20549

FORM 10-K
Mark One

El ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended September 30 2013

TRANSITION REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15d OF THE
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from __________ to __________
Commission ifie number 1-13602

The FemaleHealth Company
Name of registrant as specified in its charter

Wisconsin 39-1144397

State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or I.R.S Employer Identification No
organization

515 State Street Suite 2225 Chicago Illinois 60654

Address of principal executive offices Zip Code

Registrants telephone number including area code 312 595-9123

Securities registered under Section 12b of the Act

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered

Common stock $.01 par value NASDAQ Stock Market

Securities registered under Section 12g of the Act

None

Title of Class

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is well-known seasoned issuer as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities

Act

Yes No
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15d of the

Act

YesoNo

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15d of

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the registrant

was required to file such reports and has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days Yes

No



Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site if

any every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during

the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files

YesNoo
Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained

herein and will not be contained to the best of registrants knowledge in definitive proxy or information statements

incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is large accelerated filer an accelerated filer non-accelerated filer

or smaller reporting company See the definitions of large accelerated filer accelerated filer and smaller

reporting company in Rule 2b-2 of the Exchange Act

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer

Non-accelerated file Do not check if smaller reporting company Smaller reporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is shell company as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act Yes No

The aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant as of March 28 2013 was

approximately $159.6 million based on the
per

share closing price as of March 28 2013 quoted on the NASDAQ

Capital Market for the registrants common stock which was $7.24

There were 28726092 shares of the registrants common stock $0.01 par value per
share outstanding at November

29 2013
DOCUMENTS 1NCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Proxy Statement for the 2014 Annual Meeting of the Shareholders of the Registrant are incorporated

by reference into Part III of this report

As used in this report the terms we us our The Female Health Company FHC and the Company

mean The Female Health Company and its subsidiaries collectively unless the context indicates another meaning

and the term common stock means shares of our common stock par value of $0.01 per share



THE FEMALE HEALTH COMPANY

FORM 10-K

SEPTEMBER 30 2013

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART Page

Item Business

Item 1A Risk Factors 13

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments 17

Item Properties 17

Item Legal Proceedings 17

Item Mine Safety Disclosures

PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
18

Purchases of Equity Securities

Item Selected Financial Data 21

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
22

Operations

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 28

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 28

Item Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial
28

Disclosure

Item 9A Controls and Procedures 28

Item 9B Other Information 29

PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance 30

Item 11 Executive Compensation 30

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
30

Stockholder Matters

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence 31

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services 31

PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules 32

Signatures 36



FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K which are not statements of historical fact are

intended to be and are hereby identified as forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private

Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 Forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of forward-

looking words or phrases such as anticipate believe could expect intend may opportunity plan

predict potential estimate will would or the negative of these terms or other words of similarmeaning

These statements are based upon the Companys current plans and strategies and reflect the Companys current

assessment of the risks and uncertainties related to its business and are made as of the date of this report The

Company cautions readers that forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks uncertainties and

other factors that may cause the actual results performance or achievements of the Company to be materially

different from any future results performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking

statements Such factors include but are not limited to those described under the caption Risk Factors in Item 1A

of this report The Company undertakes no obligation to make any revisions to the forward-looking statements

contained in this report or to update them to reflect events or circumstances occurring after the date of this report



PART

Item Business

General

The Female Health Company manufactures markets and sells the FC2 Female Condom FC2 FC2 is the only

currently available female-controlled product approved by the U.S Food and Drug Administration FDA and
cleared by the World Health Organization WHO for purchase by U.N agencies that provides dual protection

against unintended pregnancy and sexually transmitted infections STIs including HIV/AIDS The Companys
first generation product was the FC1 Female Condom Class III medical device approved by the FDA in 1993
The Companys second generation product FC2 has been available globally since 2007 and in the U.S since 2009

after it was approved by the FDA as Class III medical device

FC2 Female Condom provides women dual protection against STIs including HIV/AIDS and unintended

pregnancy Because FC2s primary usages are for disease prevention and family planning the public health sector
is the Companys main market Within the public health sector various organizations supply critical products such

as FC2 at no cost or low cost to those who need but cannot afford to buy such products for themselves

The Company has relatively small customer base with limited number of customers who generally purchase in

large quantities Over the past few years significant customers have included large global agencies such as the

United Nations Population Fund UNFPA the United States Agency for International Development USAID
through its facilitator John Snow Inc and Sekunjalo Investments Corporation PTY Ltd Sekunjalo the

Companys distributor in the Republic of South Africa RSA Other customers include ministries of health or

other governmental agencies which either purchase directly or via in-country distributors and non-governmental

organizations NGOs

FC2 is currently available in 143 countries significant number of countries with the highest demand potential are

in the developing world The incidence of HIV/AIDS other STIs and unwanted pregnancy in these countries

represents remarkable potential for significant sales of product that benefits some of the worlds most

underprivileged people However conditions in these countries can be volatile and result in unpredictable delays in

program development tender applications and processing orders

Purchasing patterns vary significantly from one customer to another and may reflect factors other than simple
demand For example some governmental agencies purchase through formal procurement process in which

tender request for bid is issued for either specific or maximum unit quantity Tenders also define other

requirements for qualified bid submission such as product specifications regulatory approvals clearance by
WHO unit pricing and delivery timetable Bidders have limited period of time in which to submit bids Bids are

subjected to an evaluation
process which is intended to conclude with tender award to the successful bidder The

entire tender process from publication to award may take many months to complete Administrative issues politics

bureaucracy process errors changes in leadership funding priorities and/or other pressures may delay or derail the

process and affect the purchasing patterns of public sector customers As result the Company may experience

significant quarter-to-quarter sales variations due to the timing and shipment of large orders

In the past few years the Companys business model which includes high gross margins modest capital

expenditures and low expense requirements compared to production volumes has permitted the Company to sustain

profitable operations without debt and maintain dividend payments during periods of delayed orders Continuation

of these accomplishments in the future periods will be contingent on number of factors including the degree and

period of sales volatility and the strength of global demand for the Companys product

The Company currently operates in one industry segment which includes the development manufacture and

marketing of consumer health care products Therefore no segment data is disclosed in the Notes to the

Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this
report Information regarding the Companys operations by

geographic area is included in Note 10 in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this

report



Company History

The female condom was invented by Danish physician who obtained U.S patent for FC1 in 1988 The physician

subsequently sold certain rights to the condom to Chartex Resources Limited Chartex In the years
that followed

Chartex with resources provided by Danish entrepreneur and nonprofit Danish foundation developed the

manufacturing processes
and completed other activities associated with bringing the female condom to market in

certain non-U.S countries The Wisconsin Pharmacal Company Inc Wisconsin Pharmacal the Companys

predecessor owned certain rights to the female condom in the U.S Canada and Mexico Wisconsin Pharmacal

pursued the pre-clinical and clinical studies and overall development of the product necessary for U.S FDA

approval and worldwide distribution of the product

The Female Health Company is the successor to Wisconsin Pharmacal company which manufactured and

marketed disparate specialty chemical and branded consumer products Wisconsin Pharmacal was originally

incorporated in 1971

In fiscal 1995 the Companys Board of Directors approved plan to complete series of actions designed in part

to maximize the potential of the Female Condom First the Company restructured and transferred the Wisconsin

Pharmacal name and all of the assets and liabilities of the Company other than those related to the Female Condom

to newly formed wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company WPC Holdings Inc Holdings In January 1996

the Company sold Holdings to an unrelated third party Then in February 1996 the Company acquired Chartex At

the same time the Company was renamed The Female Health Company As result of the sale of Holdings and the

acquisition of Chartex The Female Health Company evolved to its current state with its sole business consisting of

the manufacture marketing and sale of the Female Condom

The FDA approved FC1 for distribution in the U.S in 1993 and approved the Companys U.K FC1 manufacturing

facility in 1994 In 2005 the Company completed development of second generation Female Condom FC2 with

the following objectives

Expand access to female-controlled prevention by offering more affordable product

Increase HIV/AIDS prevention and family planning options

Lower health care costs

Increase gross margins

FC2 was first marketed internationally in March 2007 and has been marketed in the U.S since August 2009 In

October 2009 the Company completed the transition from its first generation product FC to its second generation

product FC2 and production ofFCl ceased The Company retains ownership of certain world-wide rights as well

as various patents regulatory approvals and other intellectual property related to FC

FC2 was approved by the FDA as Class III medical device on March 10 2009 In addition to FDA approval FC2

has been approved by other regulatory agencies including the European Union India and Brazil Based on

rigorous scientific review WHO agreed that FC2 performs in the same manner as FC and cleared FC2 for purchase

by U.N agencies in 2006

Since FC2s introduction in March 2007 through September 30 2013 approximately
225 million FC2s have been

distributed in 143 countries It is sold directly to consumers in 16 countries Since the first FDA approval
in 1993

the Company has sold approximately 400 million Female Condoms FC1 and FC2

Strategy

The Companys strategy
is to fully develop global markets for FC2 for both contraception and prevention of STIs

including HIV/AIDS Since the introduction of its first generation product FC the Company has developed

contacts and relationships with global public health sector organizations such as WHO UNFPA USAID the United

Nations Joint Programme on HIV/AIDS IJNAIDS country-specific health ministries and NGOs and

commercial partners in various countries The Company has representatives in various locations around the world to

provide technical support and assist with its customers prevention and family planning programs As announced

during the July 2012 London Summit on Family Planning in London England the London Summit the



Company has pledged to significantly increase its global education and training investment over the period from

2013 through 2018

The Companys first generation product FC was produced from costly raw material polyurethane in labor

intensive manufacturing process in London England To expand womens access to the female condom increase

sales volume reduce costs and significantly increase
gross margin the Company developed its second generation

product FC2 The second generation product is made from less costly raw material nitrile polymer FC2s

production process is more efficient and less labor and capital intensive than that ofFCl making it less costly to

produce Its price is now approximately 30 percent less than FC1 FC2 is currently being produced at the

Companys facility in Selangor D.E Malaysia and in Kochi India in conjunction with FHCs exclusive distributor

in India Hindustan Lifecare Limited HLL The Company made its first substantial sales of FC2 in fiscal 2007
Since October 2009 all of the Companys unit sales have been FC2 Production in London was discontinued with

the final shipment ofFCl in October 2009 As result of the successful development of FC2 the Company was able

to both reduce the price to the public health sector and increase its
gross margin

Since the products primary market is currently the public health sector the Company incurs minimal sales and

marketing expense Thus as the demand for FC2 continues to grow in the public health sector the Companys

operating expenses may grow at much lower rate than that of volume

Products

Currently there are only two FDA approved and marketed products that prevent the transmission of HI V/AIDS

through sexual intercourse the male condom and FC2 FC2 is currently the only FDA approved and marketed

female-controlled product that prevents STIs including HIV/AIDS Used consistently and correctly FC2 provides

women dual protection against STIs including HIV/AIDS and unintended pregnancy FC2 does not compete with

the male condom it provides an alternative to either unprotected sex or male condom usage

An economic analysis of the cost effectiveness of an FC2 HIV/AIDS prevention program conducted by Dr David

Holtgrave the chairman of the Department of Health Behavior and Society at the Johns Hopkins Bloomberg School

of Public Health was featured in the March 26 2012 issue of AIDS and Behavior The study showed that the

Washington D.C FC2 prevention program public-private partnership to provide and promote FC2 prevented

enough HIV infections in the first year alone to save over $8 million in avoided future medical care costs over and

above the cost of approximately $445000 for the program This means that for every dollar spent on the program
there was cost savings of nearly $20 In the article Dr Holtgrave concluded These results clearly indicate that

delivery of and education about Female Condoms is an effective HIV prevention intervention and an outstanding

public health investment Washington D.C began its program in 2010 to fight disease that is at epidemic levels

At least percent of Washington D.C residents have HIV or AIDS prevalence rate that is the highest of any U.S

city

Numerous clinical and behavioral studies have been conducted regarding use of the female condom Studies show

that in many cultures the female condom is found acceptable by women and their partners Importantly studies also

show that when the female condom is made available as an option along with male condoms there is significant

increase in protected sex acts with concurrent decrease in STIs The increase in protected sex acts varies by

country and
averages

between 10 percent and 35 percent

FC2 has basically the same physical design specifications safety and efficacy profile as FC Manufactured from

nitrile polymer formulation that is exclusive to the Company FC2 is produced more economically than FC which

was made from more costly raw material polyurethane FC2 consists of soft loose fitting sheath and two rings

an external ring of rolled nitrile and loose internal ring made of flexible polyurethane FC2s soft sheath lines the

vagina preventing skin-to-skin contact during intercourse Its external ring remains outside the vagina partially

covering the external genitalia The internal ring is used for insertion and helps keep the device in place during use

FC2s primary raw material nitrile polymer offers number of benefits over natural rubber latex the raw material

most commonly used in male condoms FC2s nitrile polymer is stronger than latex reducing the probability that

the female condom sheath will tear during use Unlike latex FC2s nitrile polymer quickly transfers heat FC2

warms to body temperature immediately upon insertion which may enhance the users sensation and pleasure



Unlike the male condom FC2 may be inserted in advance of arousal eliminating disruption during sexual intimacy

FC2 is also an alternative to latex sensitive users percent to 20 percent of the population who are unable to use

male condoms without irritation To the Companys knowledge there is no reported allergy to the nitrile polymer

FC2 is pre-lubricated disposable and recommended for use during single sex act FC2 is not reusable

FC2 received FDA approval as Class III medical device on March 10 2009 and has been available in the U.S

since August 2009 In addition to FDA approval FC2 has been approved by other regulatory agencies including

the European Union India and Brazil Based on rigorous scientific review WHO agreed that FC2 performs in the

same manner as FC1 and cleared FC2 for purchase by U.N agencies in 2006

Global Market Potential

Because FC2 offers woman dual protection against both unintended pregnancy and STIs including HIV/AIDS its

market encompasses both family planning and disease prevention

Disease Prevention The first clinical evidence of AIDS was noted more than thirty years ago Since then

HIV/AIDS has become the most devastating pandemic facing humankind in recorded history In November 2009

WHO released statistics indicating that on world-wide basis HIV/AIDS is now the leading cause of death in

women 15 to 44 years
of age According to WHO in 2010 worldwide more than half of all the adults livings with

HIV were women and almost 50 percent of all new adult cases of HIV/AIDS were women In the United States the

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention CDC and FDA both list heterosexual sex as the most common method

of HIV transmission in women

For sexually active couples male condoms and FC2 are the only barrier methods approved by the FDA for

preventing sexual transmission of HIV/AIDS In recent years scientists have sought to develop alternative means of

preventing HI V/AIDS Based on the complexities of such research viable prevention alternative is unlikely to be

available in the foreseeable future To date it is clear that condoms male and female continue to play key role in

the prevention of STIs including HIV/AIDS FC2 when used consistently and correctly gives woman control

over her sexual health by providing dual protection against STIs including HIV/AIDS and unintended pregnancy

In the U.S the CDC continues to report that the HIV/AIDS epidemic is taking an increasing toll on women and

girls Women of color particularly black women have been especially hard hit Women of color comprise both the

majority of new HIV and AIDS cases among women and the majority of women living with the disease

In 2009 the CDC lists the rate of new HIV infection for black women as approximately 15 times the rate for white

women in the United States In 2009 in the United States it is estimated that one in 32 black women would be

diagnosed with HIV in her lifetime compared to the one in 526 incidence rate amongst white women

The CDC estimates there are 19 million new STIs in the U.S each year It is also estimated that over 24000 women

each year
in the U.S lose the ability to conceive or carry pregnancy to term due to undiagnosed or untreated STIs

In March 2008 the CDC announced that study indicated that 26 percent of female adolescents in the U.S have at

least one of the most common STIs Led by the CDCs Sara Forhan the study is the first to examine the combined

national prevalence of common STIs among adolescent women in the U.S In addition to overall STI prevalence

the study found that by race African American teenage girls had the highest prevalence with an overall prevalence

of 48 percent compared to 20 percent among both whites and Mexican Americans Overall approximately
half of

all the teens in the study reported ever having sex Among these girls the STI prevalence was 40 percent

On November 29 2012 in conjunction with World AIDS day U.S Secretary of State Hillary Clinton as part of the

Presidents Emergency Plan For AIDS Relief PEPFAR issued blueprint for an AIDS Free Generation In the

blueprint it states that female condoms are unique in providing female controlled HIV prevention option and that

PEPFAR will work with partner governments and other donors to promote female condoms wherever effective

programs can build sustained demand

On September 24 2013 the U.K Government announced it was donating $1.5 billion over year period to the

Global Fund for HIV/AIDS TB and Malaria treatment and prevention



Contraception The feminization of HI V/AIDS has increased the relevance of FC2 for the prevention of unintended

pregnancies as well as disease prevention Unintended pregnancy may result in maternal and infant death babies

with HIV/AIDS AIDS orphans and increased health care costs

On July 11 2012 World Population Day the U.K Government and the Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation held the

London Summit It was an invitation only meeting attended by public health officials government officials and

private sector companies that supply contraceptives and related products The primary goal of the London Summit

was to increase access to contraceptives to an additional 120 million poor women in 69 developing countries by
2020 Achievement of this goal will reduce maternal and infant immortality HIV/AIDS babies and orphans and

health care costs

At the close of the London Summit it was announced that commitments of $4.6 billion had been made to fund the

2012-2020 program This included commitments by the U.K Government other specific countries the Bill

Melinda Gates Foundation other foundations Bloomberg Philanthropies and other private sector donors

FHC was one of only fourteen companies invited to attend the London Summit O.B Parrish the Companys
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer participated on panel Partnering for Progress The Role of Public/Private

Partnerships

FHC announced Public/Private Partnership program to support the goal to provide contraceptives to an additional

120 million women by 2020 FHCs program includes the following

Aggregate annual FC2 purchases from all major public sector buyers each year to establish volume-based

unit pricing for the succeeding year

Award major public sector purchasers with FC2 equal to percent of their total annual units purchased at

no cost to such purchasers

Invest up to $14 million over the period from 2013 through 2018 in reproductive health and HIV/AIDS

prevention education and training in collaboration with global agencies

The Company believes achievement of the London Summits goals will increase the market for contraceptives over

the long-term It also believes it will increase the market for the female condom as it is the only female-controlled

product that provides dual protection against unintended pregnancy and STIs including HIV/AIDS

On September 28 2013 The Global Poverty Project in partnership with the Cotton On Foundation sponsored

concert in Central Park in New York which included number of celebrities Attendance was estimated to be

60000 and the concert was streamed worldwide The mission of the Global Citizens Group is to end extreme

poverty It has number of private sector partners At the Central Park concert FHC was recognized as lead

partner in the It Takes Two Campaign global awareness campaign whose goal is to increase awareness and

support for the London Summits goals

The Condom Market

The global male condom market public and private sector is estimated to be $3 billion annually The global public

health sector market for male condoms is estimated to be greater than 10 billion units annually The private sector

market for male condoms is estimated at billion units annually UNAIDS estimates that the annual public health

sector demand for condoms both male and female will reach 19 billion units by 2015

Government Regulation

Female condoms as group were classified by the FDA as Class III medical device in 1989 Class III medical

devices are deemed by the FDA to carry potential risks with use which must be tested prior to FDA approval

referred to as Premarket Approval PMA for sale in the U.S As FC2 is Class III medical device prior to selling

FC2 in the U.S the Company was required to submit PMA application containing technical information on the

use of FC2 such as pre-clinical and clinical safety and efficacy studies which were gathered together in required

format and content The FC2 PMA was approved by the FDA as Class III medical device in March 2009



FC2 received the CE Mark which allows it to be marketed throughout the European Union FC2 has also been

approved by regulatory authorities in Brazil India and other jurisdictions

The Company believes that FC2s PMA and FDA classification as Class III medical device creates significant

barrier to entry in the U.S market The Company estimates that it would take minimum of four to six years to

implement execute and receive FDA approval of PMA to market another type of female condom

In the U.S FC2 is regulated by the FDA Pursuant to section 515a3 of the Safe Medical Amendments Act of

1990 the SMA Act the FDA may temporarily suspend approval and initiate withdrawal of the PMA if the FDA

finds that FC2 is unsafe or ineffective or on the basis of new information with respect to the device which when

evaluated together with information available at the time of approval indicates lack of reasonable assurance that

the device is safe or effective under the conditions of use prescribed recommended or suggested in the labeling

Failure to comply with the conditions of FDA approval invalidates the approval order Commercial distribution of

device that is not in compliance with these conditions is violation of the SMA Act As an FDA approved medical

device the facilities in which FC2 is produced and tested are subject to periodic FDA inspection to ensure

compliance with current Good Manufacturing Processes The Companys most recent FDA inspection was

completed in September 2010

The FDAs approval order for FC2 includes conditions that relate to product labeling including information on the

package itself and instructions for use called package insert which accompanies each product The Company

believes it is in compliance with the FDA approval order

The Companys facility may also be subject to inspection by UNFPA USAID and county specific ministries of

health

Significant Customers

Because FC2 provides dual protection against both STIs including HIV/AIDS and unintended pregnancy it is an

integral part of both HIV/AIDS prevention and family planning programs throughout the world These programs are

typically supplied by global public health sector buyers who purchase products for distribution at low cost or no

cost to those who need but cannot afford to buy such products themselves Within the global public health sector

are large global agencies such as UNFPA USAID DFID U.K.s Department for International Development PSI

Population Services International and other social marketing groups various government health agencies and

NGOs The Companys most significant customers are either global public health sector agencies country specific

ministries of health or those who facilitate their purchases and/or distribution

The Companys three largest customers currently are 1.JNFPA USAID and Sekunjalo UNFPA accounted for 62

percent of unit sales in fiscal 2013 40 percent
of unit sales in fiscal 2012 and 25 percent of unit sales in fiscal 2011

USAID accounted for less than 10 percent of unit sales in fiscal 2013 25 percent of unit sales in fiscal 2012 and 26

percent of unit sales in fiscal 2011 Sekunjalo accounted for less than 10 percent of unit sales in fiscal 201320

percent of unit sales in 2012 and less than 10 percent of unit sales in fiscal 2011 No other single customer

accounted for more than 10 percent of unit sales in fiscal 2013 2012 or 2011

Commercial Markets Direct to Consumers

The Company has distribution agreements
and other arrangements with commercial partners which market directly

to consumers in 16 countries including the United States Brazil Spain France and the United Kingdom These

agreements are generally exclusive for single country Under these agreements the Company sells FC2 to the

distributor partners who market and distribute the product to consumers in the established territory

In the U.S FHC is conducting two test programs to reach young consumers The FC2 Mobile Engagement Program

and The FC2 College Campus Program The objective is to create awareness and sexual health knowledge that

results in online/in store retail purchasing by young women and men Education and training are the key content

elements for these programs similar to the public sector
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The FC2 Mobile Engagement Program is currently targeted to the following five cities where FHC has

established community support through its partnership with womens and public health
groups

in

conducting Public Sector Programs Washington D.C Chicago Atlanta Houston and San Francisco

Earlier this year FHC initiated The FC2 College Campus Program Colleges were contacted and advised

that they could apply to participate in an on-campus FC2 Program If accepted FHC would provide

mini-grant $50-$500 and related education and training materials to help start an on-campus program
Grants would be awarded based on schools intention to raise awareness of FC2 on campus
increase access to FC2 on-campus and enhance students capacity to effectively and accurately use

FC2 Colleges also had the option alternate to the mini-grant application of completing FHCs Online

Training Program or participating in centrally located multi-institution training session located in

central city The pilot regions for The FC2 College Campus Program were determined through selection of

the following four American College Health Associations Regional Affiliates New England New York
South and South West College Health Associations In total 30 colleges were chosen to receive grants for

The FC2 College Campus Program including Colgate University Tulane University and Duke University

plus student groups from institutions such as Boston College

Relationships and Agreements with Public Health Sector Organizations

The Companys customers are primarily large global agencies NGOs ministries of health and other government

agencies which purchase and distribute FC2 for use in HIV/AIDS prevention and family planning programs The

Company offers uniform volume-based pricing to such agencies rather than entering into long-term supply

agreements In the U.S FC2 is sold to city and state public health clinics as well as not-for-profit organizations such

as Planned Parenthood

FC2 is being distributed as part of New York Citys Female Condom Education and Distribution Project being

conducted by the Bureau of HIV/AIDS Prevention and Control As of September 30 2013 FC2 was available in

1436 locations in New York City as compared to 1001 at September 30 2012 including both community based

organizations and the N.Y.C Department of Health and Mental Hygiene units

Los Angeles/LA County initiated condom distribution program similar to the New York City program Program
locations receive training and are supplied male and female condoms for free distribution to the general public It is

anticipated the number of sites providing female condoms will increase similarly to New York City

The Company in collaboration with the National Female Condom Coalition NFCC is encouraging FC2 usage

through city-specific programs as well as other coordinated efforts To make train the trainer education broadly

available the Company introduced its FC2 On-line Training Program in March 2012 The NFCC support of the

female condom was evidenced by its initiation of the first-ever Global Female Condom Day on September 12 2012

The NFCC and the Universal Access to Female Condoms UAFC sponsored the second annual Global Female

Condom Day on September 16 2013 Celebrations were held worldwide and many such celebrations highlighted

FC2

FHC has partnered with Ogilvy Public Relations to develop Media Relations Toolkit and Webinar for the NFCC
which focuses on best practices for media relations in order to improve partner community impact via traditional and

social media

Employees

As of November 29 2013 the Company had 132 full-time employees including 11 located in the U.S 12 in the

U.K 105 in Malaysia and in other countries to implement training and programs and part-time employees

including located in the U.S and in Malaysia None of the Companys employees are represented by labor

union The Company believes that its employee relations are good In Malaysia significant proportion of direct

labor is supplied by contracted work force
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Environmental Regulation

The Company believes there are no material issues or material costs associated with the Companys compliance with

environmental laws related to the manufacture and distribution of FC2 The Company has not incurred

environmental expenses
in fiscal 2013 2012 or 2011 nor does it anticipate environmental expenses in the

foreseeable future

Raw Materials

The principal raw material used to produce FC2 is nitrile polymer While general nitrile formulations are available

from number of suppliers the Company has chosen to work closely with the technical market leader in synthetic

polymers to develop grade ideally suited to the bio-compatibility and functional needs of female condom The

supplier has agreed that the Company is the sole and exclusive owner of the unique polymer formulation that was

developed for FC2

Manufacturing Facilities

The Company leases 16000 sq ft of production space in Selangor D.E Malaysia for the production of FC2 In

fiscal 2012 expansion of the facilitys manufacturing capacity by 20 percent to approximately 100 million units

annually was begun The expansion was completed in October 2012 when the new lines went into production The

cost was approximately $700000 which was funded internally

The Companys India-based FC2 end-stage production capacity for supply to the Indian market is located at

facility owned by its exclusive distributor HLL in the Cochin Special Export Zone In December 2007 production

began at that facility which has capacity of 7.5 million units per year

FHC total FC2 production capacity is approximately 100 million units annually The Company is currently

reviewing options to expand its manufacturing capacity The Company will consider manufacturing in other

locations as the demand for FC2 develops

Competition

FC2 participates in the same market as male condoms however it is not seen as directly competing with male

condoms Rather studies show that providing FC2 is additive in terms of prevention and choice Male condoms cost

less and have brand names that are more widely recognized than FC2 In addition male condoms are generally

manufactured and marketed by companies with significantly greater financial resources than the Company

Other parties have developed and marketed female condoms None of these female condoms marketed or under

development by other parties have secured FDA approval The Cupid female condom became the second female

condom design to successfully complete the WHO prequalification process
in July 2012 and be cleared for purchase

by U.N agencies It is possible that other female condoms may receive FDA approval or complete the WHO

prequalification process or may otherwise compete with FC2

Patents and Trademarks

FC2 patents have been issued by the United States Europe Canada Australia South Africa the Peoples Republic

of China Japan Mexico and the African Regional Intellectual Property Organization ARIPO which includes

Botswana Gambia Ghana Kenya Lesotho Malawi Mozambique Namibia Sierra Leone Sudan Swaziland

Tanzania Uganda Zambia and Zimbabwe Further the European patent for FC2 has been validated in the

following countries Austria Belgium Bulgaria Switzerland Republic of Cyprus Czech Republic Germany

Denmark Estonia Spain Finland France United Kingdom Greece Hungary Ireland Italy Luxembourg Monaco

Netherlands Portugal Romania Sweden Slovenia Slovakia and Turkey The patents cover the key aspects of

FC2 including its overall design and manufacturing process In addition patent applications
for FC2 are pending in

number of other countries around the world There can be no assurance that pending patent applications provide

the Company with protection against copycat products entering markets during the pendency of the applications
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The Company has registration for the trademark FC2 Female Condom in the United States Furthermore the

Company has filed applications or secured registrations in 40 countries or jurisdictions around the world to protect

the various names and symbols used in marketing FC2 These encompass 14 different trademarks including

femidom femy Reality and others In addition the experience that has been gained through years of

manufacturing its Female Condoms FC and FC2 has allowed the Company to develop trade secrets and know-

how including certain proprietary production technologies that further protect its competitive position

Backlog

Unfilled product orders totaled $2940710 at November 29 2013 and $11382572 at November 30 2012 Unfilled

orders materially fluctuate from
quarter-to-quarter and the amount at November 29 2013 includes orders with

requested delivery dates later in fiscal 2014 The Company expects current unfilled orders to be filled during fiscal

2014

Available Information

The Company maintains its corporate website at www.femalehealth.com and it makes available free of charge

through this website its annual report on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current reports on Form 8-K
and amendments to those reports that the Company files with or furnishes to the Securities and Exchange
Commission the SEC as soon as reasonably practicable after it electronically files such material with or

furnishes it to the SEC Information on the Companys website is not part of this report

Item Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the risks described below together with all of the other information included in this

Annual Report and our other SEC filings in considering our business and prospects The risks described below are

not the only risks we face Additional risks that we do not yet know of or that we currently think are immaterial

may also impair our business operations If any of the events or circumstances described in the following risks

occur our business financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected In such

cases the trading price of our common stock could decline

Our success is dependent upon the success of FC2

We expect to derive virtually all of our future revenues from sales of our only product FC2 The ultimate level of

demand for FC2 is uncertain and we may not be able to grow our business if demand for FC2 does not increase

We also depend on public sector agencies around the world to continue to include FC2 in their STI prevention and

family planning programs and on our commercial sector distribution partners to successfully market and distribute

FC2 decline in demand for FC2 would reduce our net revenues and profitability

Our business may be affected by contracting risks with government and other international health agencies

Our customers are primarily large international agencies and government health agencies which purchase and

distribute FC2 for use in family planning and HIV/AIDS prevention programs Sales to such agencies may be

subject to government contracting risks including the appropriations process and funding priorities potential

bureaucratic delays in awarding contracts process errors politics or other pressures and the risk that contracts may
be subject to cancellation delay or restructuring These contracting risks may cause significant quarter-to-quarter

variations in our operating results and could adversely affect our net revenues and profitability Budget issues and

spending cuts affecting government health agencies may also adversely affect demand for our product and our net

revenues

We depend on three major customers for significant portion of our net revenues

The Companys three largest customers currently are UNFPA USAID and Sekunjalo UNFPA accounted for 62

percent of unit sales in fiscal 201340 percent of unit sales in fiscal 2012 and 25 percent of unit sales in fiscal 2011
USAID accounted for less than 10 percent of unit sales in fiscal 2013 25 percent of unit sales in fiscal 2012 and 26

percent of unit sales in fiscal 2011 Sekunjalo accounted for less than 10 percent of unit sales in fiscal 2013 20
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percent of unit sales in 2012 and less than 10 percent of unit sales in fiscal 2011 An adverse change in our

relationship with our largest customers could have material adverse effect on our net revenues and profitability

Since we sell product in foreign markets we are subject to international business risks that could adversely

affect our operating
results

Our international operations subject us to risks including

economic and political instability

changes in international regulatory requirements import duties or export restrictions including limitations

on the repatriation of earnings

difficulties in staffing and managing foreign operations

complications in complying with trade and foreign tax laws

price controls and other restrictions on foreign currency and

difficulties in our ability to enforce legal rights and remedies

Any of these risks might disrupt the supply of our products increase our expenses or decrease our net revenues The

cost of compliance with trade and foreign tax laws increases our expenses and actual or alleged violations of such

laws could result in enforcement actions or financial penalties that could result in substantial costs

Increases in the cost of raw materials labor and other costs used to manufacture our product could increase

our cost of sales and reduce our gross margins

We may experience increased costs of raw materials including the nitrile polymer used in FC2 and increased labor

costs We may not be able to pass along such cost increases to our customers As result an increase in the cost of

raw materials labor or other costs associated with manufacturing FC2 could increase our cost of sales and reduce

our gross margins

Currency exchange rate fluctuations could increase our expenses

Because we manufacture FC2 in leased facility located in Malaysia portion of our operating costs are

denominated in foreign currency While material portion of our future sales of FC2 are likely to be in foreign

markets all sales of FC2 are denominated in U.s dollars Manufacturing costs are subject to normal currency risks

associated with fluctuations in the exchange rate of the Malaysian ringgit MYR relative to the U.S dollar

Historically we have not hedged our foreign currency risk

We rely primarily on single facility to manufacture FC2 which subjects us to the risk of supply disruptions

We manufacture FC2 in single leased facility located in Malaysia Difficulties encountered by this facility such as

fire accident natural disaster or an outbreak of contagious disease could halt or disrupt production at the facility

delay the completion of orders or cause the cancellation of orders Any of these risks could increase our expenses or

reduce our net revenues

Our product is subject to substantial government regulation which exposes us to risks that we will be fined or

exposed to civil or criminal liability receive negative publicity or be prevented from selling our product

FC2 is subject to regulation by the FDA under the Food Drug and Cosmetic Act and by foreign regulatory

agencies Under the Food Drug and Cosmetic Act medical devices must receive FDA clearance before they can be

sold FDA regulations also require us to adhere to Good Manufacturing Practices which include testing quality

control and documentation procedures Our compliance with applicable regulatory requirements is monitored

through periodic inspections by the FDA and foreign regulatory agencies If we fail to comply with applicable

regulations we could

be fined or exposed to civil or criminal liability

face suspensions of clearances seizures or recalls of products or operating restrictions

receive negative publicity or
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be prohibited from selling our product in the U.S or in foreign markets

Uncertainty and adverse changes in the general economic conditions may negatively affect our business

If the recent decline in general economic conditions in the U.S and other global markets in which we operate

continues or if consumers fear that economic conditions will continue to decline consumers may reduce

expenditures for products such as our product Adverse changes may occur as result of adverse global or regional

economic conditions fluctuating oil prices declining consumer confidence unemployment fluctuations in stock

markets contraction of credit availability or other factors affecting economic conditions generally These changes

may negatively affect the sales of our product increase the cost and decrease the availability of financing or

increase costs associated with producing and distributing our product In addition substantial portion of the sales

of FC2 are made in the public market to government agencies including USAID and other government agencies

around the world Worsening economic conditions as well as budget deficits and austerity measures may cause

pressures on government budgets and result in reduction in purchases of FC2 from us by governmental agencies

Because our product faces significant competition from other products including other female condoms as

well as the male condom we may not be able to achieve anticipated growth levels or profit margins

We may be unable to compete successfully against current and future competitors and competitive pressures could

have negative effect on our net revenues cash flows and profit margins Some parties have developed and

marketed female condoms although only one such product has WHO pre-clearance and none of these female

condoms have been approved by the FDA It is also possible that other parties will develop female condom
These products if developed could be distributed by companies with greater financial resources and customer

contacts than us In addition there are number of other products currently marketed which have higher degree of

accepted efficacy for preventing pregnancy than does the female condom These products include male condoms
birth control pills and Depo Provera However other than FC2 only the latex male condom is generally recognized

as being efficacious in preventing both unintended pregnancies and STIs Companies manufacturing these

competing products are generally much larger than we are and have access to significantly greater resources than we
do In addition FC2 is generally sold at prices comparatively greater than the price of the latex male condom

Accordingly FC2 will not be able to compete with the latex male condom solely on the basis of price

Sales of our product fluctuate which causes our operating results to vary from quarter-to-quarter

Sales of our product fluctuate based upon demand from our commercial partners and the public sector and the nature

of government procurement processes Historically our net revenues and profitability have varied from quarterto-

quarter due to such buying patterns Quarterly variations in operating results may cause us to fail to meet our

earnings guidance or market expectations for our operating results and may tend to depress our stock price during
such quarters

Material adverse or unforeseen legal judgments fines penalties or settlements could have an adverse impact
on our profits and cash flows

We may from time to time become party to legal proceedings incidental to our business including but not

limited to alleged claims relating to product liability environmental compliance patent infringement commercial

disputes and employment matters Future litigation could require us to record reserves or make payments which

could adversely affect our profits and cash flows Even the successful defense of legal proceedings may cause us to

incur substantial legal costs and may divert managements attention and resources away from our business

Our success depends in part on our ability to protect our intellectual property

We rely on our patented and other proprietary technology relating to FC2 The actions taken by us to protect our

proprietary rights may not be adequate to prevent imitation of our product processes or technology We cannot

assure you that our proprietary technology will not become known to competitors or that others will not

independently develop substantially equivalent or better female condom that does not infringe on our intellectual

property rights or will not challenge or assert rights in and ownership of our patents and other proprietary rights
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limited number of our shareholders can exercise substantial influence over our company

As of November 29 2013 our directors and executive officers and their affiliates beneficially owned in the

aggregate approximately 25.3 percent
of the outstanding shares of our common stock If these shareholders were to

vote together as group they would have the ability to exert significant influence over our Board of Directors and

policies For instance these shareholders would be able to exert significant influence over the outcome of all

shareholder votes including votes concerning director elections amendments to our articles of incorporation and

possible mergers corporate control contests and other significant corporate transactions

We may not be able to continue paying dividends on our common stock

Although we have paid quarterly cash dividend to the holders of our common stock since the second quarter of

fiscal 2010 holders of our common stock are not entitled to receive dividends Downturns in the domestic and

global economies or in our operating
results could cause our Board of Directors to consider among other things the

reduction or elimination of dividends paid on our common stock This could adversely affect the market price of

our common stock In addition under our credit facility with Heartland Bank dividends are only permitted as long

as after giving effect to the dividend we have ratio of total liabilities to total stockholders equity of no more than

11

Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents Wisconsin law and change of control agreements with

our officers could prevent or delay change in control of our company

We are subject to number of provisions in our charter documents Wisconsin law and change of control

agreements
that may discourage delay or prevent merger or acquisition that shareholder may consider favorable

These anti-takeover provisions include the following

the authority provided to our Board of Directors in our Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation to

issue preferred stock without further action by our shareholders

change of control agreements we have entered into with four of our employees which provide for up to

three years of compensation following change of control as defined in the agreements

the provision under Wisconsin law that permits shareholders to act by written consent only if such consent

is unanimous

the provision under Wisconsin law that requires for corporation such as us that was formed before

January 1973 the affirmative vote of the holders of at least two-thirds of the outstanding shares of our

voting stock to approve an amendment to our articles of incorporation merger submitted to vote of our

shareholders or sale of substantially all of our assets and

the Wisconsin control share acquisition statute and Wisconsins fair price and business combination

provisions which limit the ability of an acquiring person to engage in certain transactions or to exercise the

full voting power of acquired shares under certain circumstances

The trading price of our common stock has been volatile and investors in our common stock may experience

substantial losses

The trading price of our common stock has been volatile and may become volatile again in the future The trading

price of our common stock could decline or fluctuate in response to variety of factors including

our failure to meet our earnings guidance or market expectations for our performance

changes in the rate at which we pay dividends

the timing of announcements by us or our competitors concerning significant product developments

acquisitions or financial performance

fluctuation in our quarterly operating results

substantial sales of our common stock

general stock market conditions or

other economic or external factors

You may be unable to sell your stock at or above your purchase price
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Item Unresolved Staff Comments

Not Applicable

Item Properties

The Company leases approximately 5100 square feet of office space at 515 North State Street Suite 2225 Chicago
IL 60654 The lease expires October 31 2016 The Company utilizes warehouse

space and sales fulfillment

services of an independent public warehouse located in Wood Dale IL for storage and distribution of FC2 In June

2010 the Company entered new lease agreement for 6400 square feet of office
space located in London England

The lease which expires in June 2020 includes an option by the Company to terminate the lease in 2015 The

Company manufactures and warehouses FC2 within leased facility with 16000 sq ft of production space in

Selangor D.E Malaysia The FDA-approved manufacturing process
is subject to periodic inspections by the FDA

as well as the U.K based notified body which is responsible for CE and ISO accreditation The lease currently

has an expiration date of September 2016 and is renewable at the option of the Company for an additional three

year term The Companys Malaysian production capacity is approximately 100 million units annually In February

20 12 the Company extended the lease for 11000 square feet of warehouse space in Selangor Malaysia The lease

term is two years beginning March 2012 and ending on February 29 2014 The lease terms include an option by
the Company to extend the lease for an additional year

Item Legal Proceedings

The Company is not currently involved in any pending legal proceedings

Item Mine Safety Disclosures

Not Applicable
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PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity

Securities

Shares of our common stock trade on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol FHCO The approximate

number of record holders of our common stock at November 29 2013 was 293 In January 2010 the Board of

Directors adopted quarterly cash dividend policy and declared the first cash dividend in the Companys history

which was paid in February 2010 In total the Board has declared sixteen quarterly dividends the most recent of

which was paid in November 2013 All dividends have been paid from the Companys cash on hand Any future

quarterly dividends and the record date for any such dividend will be considered each quarter by the Companys

Board of Directors and announced by the Company Payment of future dividends is at the discretion of the Board of

Directors and the Company may not have sufficient cash flows to continue to pay dividends Under the Companys

credit facility with Heartland Bank dividends and share repurchases are permitted as long as after giving effect to

the dividend or share repurchase the Company has ratio of total liabilities to total stockholders equity of not more

than 11 Information regarding the high and low reported closing prices for our common stock and dividends paid

on our common stock for the quarters indicated is set forth in the table below

QUARTERS
FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH

2013 Fiscal Year

PrkepereommnshareBigh 8.00 7.87 9.94 9.88

Price per common share Low 6.20 6.59 7.14 8.59

Dividends paid
0.06 0.06 0.07 0.07

2012 Fiscal Year

Price per common share High 469 549 595 30

Price
per common share Low 3.70 4.58 5.07 5.59

Dividendpaid 005 0.05 0.06 0.06

Stock Repurchase Program

The Company has had Stock Repurchase Program in effect since January 2007 The Stock Repurchase Program

currently authorizes total of 3000000 shares to be acquired through December 31 2013 From the programs

onset through September 30 2013 the total number of shares repurchased by the Company is 2014454 The Stock

Repurchase Program authorizes purchases in privately negotiated transactions as well as in the open market

In October 2008 the Companys Board of Directors authorized repurchases in private transactions under the Stock

Repurchase Program of shares issued under the Companys equity compensation plans to directors employees and

other service providers at the market price on the effective date of the repurchase request Total repurchases under

this provision currently are limited to an aggregate of 450000 shares per calendar year and to maximum of 50000

shares annually per individual Private repurchase transactions for fiscal 2013 2012 and 2011 were 45625 34000

and 5750 shares respectively Open market repurchase transactions for fiscal 2013 2012 and 2011 were 10000

10000 and shares respectively
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Period

Jtmury 12007 june 30 2013

July 12013 July 31 2013

Augu 1.2013 August 31 2013

September 12013 September 30 2013

Quartexly Subtt4al

Iota 2014454 35

Total Number of Masimum
Shares Purchased uniber of Shares

As Part of Publicly that May yet he

Announced Purchased Lnder

Program the Program

20I1954 988046

2011954 988046

2011 954 988046

2014454 985546

2500

2014454 985546

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Drtails of reasury Stock Purchases to Date through

September 30 2011

Total

Number of

Shares

Purchased

2011054

2500

2500

A% erage

Price

Paid Per

Share

349

9.47

947
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Item Selected inancial Data

The data set forth below should be read in cot junction ts ith Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of

inancial ondition and Results of Operations and the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto

appearing in this Annual Report on orm 0K he Consolidated Statement of Income Data for the years endcd

September 30 2013 2012 and 2011 and the onsolidatLd Balance Sheet Data as ol September 30 2013 and 2012

are derived from the onsolidated Financial Statements included elsms here in this ieport The Consolidated

Statement of Income Data for the years ended September 30 2010 and 2009 and the Consolidated Balance Sheet

Data as of September 30 201 1.2010 and 2000 are derised from Consolidated Financial Statements that are not

included in this report he histoncal results re not necessarilF indicative of results to be expected foi ftiiure

periods

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income 2013

Year ended September 30

2012 2011 2010

In thousands except per share data

2009

Net revenues 31457 35034 18565 22222 27543

Cost of sales 13953 14413 8700 9297 14026

Gross prof it 9865 12935 13518

Operating expenses

Operating income

Nonoperaiwg incoren expense

income before income taxes

tncom tax benefit

Net income

Preferred di\ idends Class Series

Net income attributable to common stockholdcrs

9790 10940 3295 4349

144 148 63

323%

4409 4507 2167 2513 1485

14243 15299 5399 6737

j43$ 67$_6456

Cash and cash equivalents

Working capital

Total assets

Accumulated deficit

ong4erm obligations

otal stockholders equity

5296

10966

30446

35 594

125 174

31403 24218

In thousands

4318

7454

19443

44 697

209

16753

2009

2915

209

18540

471 43

192

12954

7714 9681 6570 8576

9934 10792

8800

4718

332

5050

125

4224

Net income per basic comtnrru share outstanding 051 055 020 025 25

Basic weighted average commons iares outstanding 28377 27694 27287 26981 25 652

Net inCoete per diluted common sbartroutstandrng 050 053 019 024 024

Diluted weighted average common shares
outstanding 28726 28933 28971 285 27807

Cash dividends declated per share 026 fF22 020 15 000

Year ended September 30

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet Data 2013 2012 2011 2010

8922

13629

35170

28715

2924

9853

18368

44544
145

16132
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lelails of the quarterly unit sales the last fse fiscal years are listed below

Period 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

October December31 17114630 15166217 6067421 I527700 7955204

January March31 16675035 13945320 8905 099 12960 496 10 298728

April June30 12583460 15198960 5922334 2606802 10345 898

July September 30 8386800 17339500 11977716 13 824 264 11592 70

Total 5475$9973872570 3891 9262 40192600

Revenues Most of the Companys revenues are derived from sales ofFE2 and are recognized upon sliipnient ot the

product to its customers Since fiscal 2008 resenue is also being derised from licensing the ompanss intellectual

property to its exclusive distributor in India Hf Hli is authorized to manufhcture C2 at HI facility mn

Kochi India for sale in Ir dia III is the Companys exclusive distributor in India and the onipar receis es

royalty based on the number of units sold by 1- Lf in India Such resenue appears
in net resenucs on the uditcd

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended September 30 2013 2012 and 01 and is recognized in

the peiiod in which the sale is mada by HLI

fhc Comparys strategy is to further deselop global market and distribution netw ork for its produ by maintaining

relationships with public health sector groups and completing partnership arrangements mth conipan es with the

necessary marketing and financial resources and local market expertise

he Companys most significant customers are either global public health sector agencies or those who facilitate

their purchases and distribution FE for use in Ills AIDS prevention and or family planning Ihe Companys
three largest customers currently are fNlPA SAID Sekunjalo CM PA accounted far 62 percent of unit sales in

fiscal 2013 40 percent oftinit sales in fiscal 2012 and 25 percent of unit sales in fiscal 2011 USA1I accotinted for

less than percent of unit sales in fiscal 2013 25 percer of unit sales in fiscal 2012 and 26 percent of unit sales in

fiscal 2011 Sekunjalo recounted for less than 10 percent of unit sales in fiscal 2013 20 percent of unit sales in

2012 and less than 10 percent ofur it sales in seal 2011 No other single customer accounted for more than 10

percent of unit sales in fiscal 2013 2012 or 2011 In the 5C2 is sold to cita and state public health clinics as

well as to noLforproht organizatic ns such as Planned Parenthood

Because the Company manufactures FE in eased facility located in Malaysia portion of the oi ipany

operating costs are denoinirated in foreign currencies ule material
portion of the Companys future saks are

likely to he in foreign markets all sales are denominated the IS dollar Effeclive October 2009 the

Companys .K and Malaysia ibsidiaries ad pted the dollar as their functional currency fur her reducing the

Company tbieign currency risk

ispenses he omparry manufactures at its facility located in Selangom D.C Malaysia he Companys cc St

of sales consists primarily of direct material costs direct labor costs and indirect production and distribution

costs Direct material costs include raw materials used to make the FC2 principally riitrile polymer Indirect

product costs include logistics quality control and maintenance expenses as well as costs for helium nitrogen

electricity and other utilities All of the key components for the manufacture of IC aie essentially as ailable from

multiple sources

Ihe ompanvs operating expenses include costs for promotion education and training relating to C2 During the

ondon Summit the Company announced program to ipport the London Summits goal to pros ide contr aceptix es

to an additional 120 million women by 2020 Ibis piogrem includes plan for the Company to irrsest
rip

to

$14 million over the eriod from 2113 through 2018 in reproductise health and IIV AIDS presention educ ition and

training in collaboration with global agencies Such investment in education and training may increase the

Companys operating expenses
in future periods althougf the ornpany has not set specific timeLble for any such

increased spending education and training The Company believes that increased spending on education and

training will expand the market for IC2 In connection with the London Summit tire Company implemented

volume purchasing incentive program to aware major public sector purchasers with lC2 equal to ercemit of their
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An entity is able to recognize tax benefit for current or past losses when it can demonstrate that the tax loss

carryforward will be utilized before expiration Management believes that the Companys recent and projected

future growth and profitability has made it more likely than not that the Company will utilize portion of its net

operating loss carryforwards in the future The Company recorded deferred tax benefit in the amount of $5.3

million during fiscal 2013 compared to $4.9 million for fiscal 2012 as result of the decrease in the valuation

allowance on these assets

Fiscal Year Ended September 30 2012 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended September 30 2011

Operating Highlights The Company had net revenues of $35033897 during fiscal 2012 compared to

$18565102 in fiscal 2011 The Companys fiscal 2012 unit sales were 88 percent higher than fiscal 2011 due to

increased volume and several large orders from major customers during fiscal 2012 During fiscal 2011 the

Companys unit shipments revenues and net income were adversely affected by bureaucratic delays and other

timing issues involving the receipt and shipment of large orders from Brazil and the RSA Significant orders for both

countries were received in the first quarter of fiscal 2012 The
average sales price of FC2 increased percent in

fiscal 2012 from fiscal 2011

The Company generated cash flow from operations of $10356054 for fiscal 2012 compared to $6968155 for fiscal

2011

The Company had net income of$15299321 or $0.53 per diluted share in fiscal 2012 compared to net income of

$5399051 or $0.19 per diluted share in fiscal 2011

During fiscal 2012 the Company continued to pay quarterly dividends raising the quarterly dividend rate from

$0.05 per share to $0.06 per share mid-year The Company remained debt free

Results of Operations The Company had net revenues of $35033897 and net income of $15299321 or $0.53 per

diluted share in fiscal 2012 compared to net revenues of$18565102 and net income of $5399051 or $0.19 per

diluted share in fiscal 2011 Net revenues increased $16468795 or 89 percent in fiscal 2012 compared to the

prior fiscal year as result of higher unit sales In fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 net revenues included royalties of

$21721 and $49011 respectively earned from licensing intellectual property to the Companys exclusive

distributor in India HLL

Gross profit increased $10755823 or 109 percent to $20621013 in fiscal 2012 from $9865190 in fiscal 2011
Gross profit as percentage of net revenues increased to 59 percent in fiscal 2012 from 53 percent in fiscal 2011

The increase in gross profit was the result of higher unit sales which improved the absorption of fixed overhead

costs

Cost of sales increased $5712972 or 66 percent to $14412884 in fiscal 2012 from $8699912 in fiscal 2011 The

increase is due to higher volume

Advertising expenses increased $20091 to $52949 in fiscal 2012 from $32858 in fiscal 2011 The increase is due

to the expansion of the U.S training and education program

Selling general and administrative
expenses increased $3091144 to $9628134 in fiscal 2012 from $6536990 in

fiscal 2011 The increase was primarily due to increased spending in education and training and incentive payments

based on the achievement of performance goals relating to the Companys unit sales and operating income

Total operating expenses increased $3111235 to $9681083 in fiscal 2012 from $6569848 in fiscal 2011

The Companys operating income increased $7644588 to $10939930 in fiscal 2012 from $3295342 in

fiscal 2011 The increase reflects the impact of significantly higher unit sales

The Company recorded non-operating expense
of $147907 in fiscal 2012 compared to non-operating expense

of

$63367 in fiscal 2011 The increase was the result of an increased foreign currency loss of $148269 in fiscal 2012

versus foreign currency loss of $61258 in fiscal 2011
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An entity is able to recognize tax benefit for current or past losses when it can demonstrate that the tax loss

carryforward will be utilized before expiration Management believes that the Companys recent and projected

future growth and profitability has made it more likely than not that the Company will utilize portion of its net

operating loss carryforwards in the future The Company recorded deferred tax benefit in the amount of $4.9

million during fiscal 2012 compared to $2.5 million for fiscal 2011 as result of the decrease in the valuation

allowance on these assets

Liquidity and Sources of Capital

We generally fund our operations and working capital needs through cash generated from operations Our operating

activities generated cash of$l 1.8 million in fiscal 2013 $10.4 million in fiscal 2012 and $7.0 million in fiscal 2011

The increase of $1.4 million in cash generated from operating activities in fiscal 2013 as compared to fiscal 2012

was primarily due to the decrease in the amount of outstanding accounts receivable at year end and the reduction in

incentive payments In fiscal 2013 investing activities consumed about $0.3 million for the purchase of fixed assets

related to the expansion of the Companys Malaysian facility Financing activities used net of $7.8 million most

of which was used to pay quarterly cash dividends The increase of $3.4 million in cash generated from operating

activities in fiscal 2012 as compared to fiscal 2011 was primarily due to the increase in revenues partially offset by

the increase of accounts receivable In fiscal 2012 investing activities consumed about $0.7 million for the

purchase of fixed assets related to the expansion of the Companys Malaysian facility Financing activities used

net of $8.7 million most of which was used to pay quarterly cash dividends and tax withholding in connection with

cashless stock option exercises where the option holders surrendered shares to satisfy their withholding obligations

At September 30 2013 the Company had working capital of $13.6 million and stockholders equity of $31.4 million

compared to working capital of $11.0 million and stockholders equity of $24.2 million as of September 30 2012

Since the Companys Board of Directors instituted quarterly cash dividend program in January 2010 the Company

has paid total of 16 consecutive dividends the most recent of which was paid on November 2013 The first

quarterly dividends were paid at the rate of $0.05 per share through February 20124 were paid at quarterly rate

per
share of $0.06 from May 2012 through February 2013 and were paid at quarterly rate per share of $0.07

from May 2013 through November 2013 cumulative total of $25.3 million has been paid since the

programs initiation

Any future quarterly dividends and the record date for such dividends will be approved each quarter by the

Companys Board of Directors and announced by the Company Payments of any future dividends are at the

discretion of the Board of Directors and the Company may not have sufficient cash flows to pay dividends

The Company believes its current cash position is adequate to fund operations of the Company in the next 12

months although no assurances can be made that such cash will be adequate If the Company needs additional cash

it may sell equity securities to raise additional capital and may borrow funds under its Heartland Bank credit facility

On August 2013 the Company entered into an amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Loan Agreement

as amended the Loan Agreement with Heartland Bank to extend the term of the Companys revolving line of

credit to August 2014 The credit facility consists of single revolving note for up to $2 million with Heartland

Bank with borrowings limited to borrowing base determined based on 70 percent to 80 percent of eligible

accounts receivable plus 50 percent of eligible inventory Significant restrictive covenants in the Loan Agreement

include prohibitions on any merger consolidation or sale of all or substantial portion of the Companys assets and

limits on the payment of dividends or the repurchase of shares The Loan Agreement does not contain any financial

covenants that require compliance with ratios or amounts Dividends and share repurchases are permitted as long as

after giving effect to the dividend or share repurchase the Company has ratio of total liabilities to total

stockholders equity of no more than 11 Borrowings on the revolving note bear interest at rate of the base rate

4.0 percent at September 30 2013 plus 0.5 percent The note is collateralized by substantially all of the assets of the

Company No amounts were outstanding under the revolving note at either September 30 2013 or 2012
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As of Norcinher 29 2013 the or
ipany

had approximately $6.1 million in cash net tiade accounts receixable of

$5 million arid current trade accounts payable of $0 nullion Presently the Company has no req ii ed debt set vice

obhos

he following table inclu les information relal ng to out contractual obligations as of Septembci 10 201 iii future

fiscal years

Contractual

Obligations

ong-terin debt

Critical ccountirig ft imates

Ihe preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and use assumptions that affect

cemiaii reported amounts aiìd disclosurcs Cri ical accounting estimates include the deferred income tax valuation

allow once Actual results ma diffci from those estimates

he ompan files separate income tax returi for its foreign suhsidiai ies ASC opic 740 rcquires recognition of

deferred tax assets arid liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of es cuts that havc bee included in the

financial statements or tax returns Under this method deferred tax assets and liabilities are detemmined based on the

differences hereen the financial statements and tax bases of assets and liabilities rising enacted tsx rates in effect

for the year in hich the differences are cxpec ed to rev ci se Deferred tax assets are also provided tom carryfoiwaids

ICr income tax purposes In addition the amount of any future tax benefits is reduced by valuation allo ancc to

the extent stich benefits arc not expcted to he icalied

ftc Company accounts for income taxes using the liahil ty mcthod which requires the recognition of defhrred tax

assets or liabilities fbr the tax effected temport ry difteiences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets

and liabilities and foi net operating loss arid tax credit carryforss ards

he ompany completes detailed analysis of its deferrer income tax valuation sllowances on air annual basis or

niorc fiequently if infoiniation comes to our atlcntion that would indicate that revision to its estimates is necessary
In cvaluating the Company ahil ty to realiLe def cried tax assets management considers all available positive

and negative evidence on country by country basis mdc ding 1st operating results and forecast of ftiture taxable

income in determini
ig

future taxable income nranageincnt makes assumptions to fbrecast federal and state

and Malaysia operating met me the reversal of ter Iporary differences and the implementation of any feasible

and prudent tsx planning strategies lime asri riptions require significant judgment regarding the fc recasts of th
futtire taxable income in each tax jurisdiction and are consistent vs uth the forecasts tised to manage tire Companys
business it should he notcd that the Company iealized significant losses through 2015 on consolidated basis nice

fiscal 2006 the Company has consistently gent rated taxable income on consolidated basis pioviding ieasonable

future period in which the Company can reasonably expect to generate taxable income In managements analysis to

determine the amount of tIre deferred tax asset to recogniL management projected futume taxable income for the

subsequent tcn yeats for each tax isdiction

Capital lease

obligations

Total 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 lheieafter

lotal 3493 376864 5102 222
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Companys ChiefFinancial Officer of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Companys disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Rules 3a- 15e and Sd- 15e under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended Based on this evaluation the Companys Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded

that the Companys disclosure controls and procedures were effective It should be noted that in designing and

evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures management recognized that any controls and procedures no

matter how well designed and operated can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control

objectives and management necessarily was required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit

relationship of possible controls and procedures The Company has designed its disclosure controls and procedures

to reach level of reasonable assurance of achieving desired control objectives and based on the evaluation

described above the Companys ChiefExecutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Companys
disclosure controls and procedures were effective at reaching that level of reasonable assurance

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There was no change in the Companys internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 3a- 15f and

Sd-I 5f under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended during the Companys most recently completed

fiscal quarter that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the Companys internal control

over financial reporting

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The report of management required under this Item 9A is contained on page F-i of this Annual Report on Form 10-

under the heading Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The attestation report required under this Item 9A is contained on page F-2 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under

the heading Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Item 9B Other Information

None
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PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Information with respect to this item is incorporated herein by reference to the discussion under the headings

Proposal Election of Directors Executive Officers Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting

Compliance Corporate Governance Matters-Director Nominations and Audit Committee Matters Audit

Committee Financial Expert in the Companys Proxy Statement for the 2014 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

which will be filed with the SEC on or Before January 28 2014 Information regarding the Companys Code of

Business Ethics is incorporated herein by reference to the discussion under Corporate Governance Matters Code

of Business Ethics in the Companys Proxy Statement for the 2014 Annual Meeting of Shareholders which will be

filed with the SEC on or before January 28 2014

The Audit Committee of the Companys Board of Directors is an audit committee for purposes
of Section

3a58A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 The members of the Audit Committee are Mary Margret Frank

Chairman and David Bethune Currently the Audit Committee only has two members On September 18 2013

the Company received letter from the Listing Qualifications Department of the NASDAQ Stock Market

NASDAQ noting that the Company was no longer in compliance with NASDAQ Marketplace Rule 5605c2

which requires the Company to have at least three independent directors serving on its Audit Committee NASDAQ

Marketplace Rule 5605c4B provides the Company with cure period to fill the vacancy on its Audit

Committee until the earlier of the Companys next annual meeting of shareholders or September 2014 The

Companys Board plans to name an independent director to serve on the Audit Committee as its third member to

cure this deficiency during the cure period

Item 11 Executive Compensation

Information with respect to this item is incorporated herein by reference to the discussion under the headings

Director Compensation and Benefits and Executive Compensation in the Companys Proxy Statement for the

2014 Annual Meeting of Shareholders which will be filed with the SEC on or before January 28 2014 The

information under the subsection Executive Compensation Compensation Committee Report is not deemed to be

soliciting material or to be filed with the SEC or subject to Regulation l4A under the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 or to be the liabilities of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and will not be deemed to be

incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

except to the extent it is specifically incorporated by reference into such filing

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Information with respect to this item is incorporated herein by reference to the discussion under the heading

Security Ownership in the Companys Proxy Statement for the 2014 Annual Meeting of Shareholders which will

be filed with the SEC on or before January 28 2014

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table summarizes share information as of September 30 2013 for the Companys equity

compensation plans and arrangements The plans and arrangements
dated prior to July 2007 were not required to be

approved by the Companys shareholders and accordingly none of these plans or arrangements have been approved

by the Companys shareholders In March 2008 the Companys shareholders approved the 2008 Stock Incentive

Plan and authorized million shares subject to adjustment in the event of stock splits and other similarevents for

issuance under the plan
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Number of Shares To Be

Issued Upon Exercise Of

Outstandin

Shares Remaining

WeightethAverage Mailable For Future

Exercise Price Of issuance Under

Outsta

336

Ihe Companys equity compensation plans no approved by shareholders consists of the 1997 Stock Option Plan

Options granted under the 1997 Stock Option Plan are nonqualifiad stock options under the Internal Rvenuc ode
options expire at such time as the Board of Directors determines provided that no stock option may he exercised

later than the tenth anniversary of the date of its grant Options cannot be exercised until the vesting period if any
specified by the Board of Directors Options not transferable other than by will or the laws of descent and

distribution and maybe exercised during the life of the participant only by him or her lhe option price pci
share is

determined by the Board of Directors but cannot he less than 100 percent of the fair market value of the conimon

stock on the date such option is granted The 1997 Stock Option Plan expired as of December 31 2006 thus no

further shares can be issued under this plan

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related ft trisactions and Director Independence

Infounation with respect to this item is incorporated herein by retŁrence to the discussion under the heading eItain

Relationships and Related Iransaci ions in thr Companys Proxy Statement for the 2014 Annual Meeting of

Shareholders which will be filed ith the SEC on or before January 28 2014 Information regaidmg director

independence is incorporated by reference to the discussions under Corporate Governance Matters Director

Independence in the Companys Proxy Statei mnt for the 2014 Annual Meeting of Shareholders which will be filed

with the SF on or before January 28 2014

Item 14 Prircipal Accountant Fees and Services

lriformation with tespect to this item is incorporated herein by reference to the discussion under the heading Audit
Committee Matters Fers of lndeendent Registered Public Accounting Firm in the Companys Proxy Statement

for the 2014 Annual Meeting of Shareholders which will he filed with the SEC on or before January28 2014

Equity compensation plans not

approved by shareh lders

Includes rights to receive total of 58 000 shares contingent on continued employment

137

1I59R92
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Exhibits

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company

3.2 Articles of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company increasing

the number of authorized shares of common stock to 27000000 shares

3.3 Articles of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company increasing
the number of authorized shares of common stock to 35500000 shares

3.4 Articles of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company increasing

the number of authorized shares of common stock to 38500000 shares

3.5 Articles of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company designating

the terms and preferences for the Class Preferred Stock Series

3.6 Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Company

4.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation as amended same as Exhibits 3.1 3.2 3.3 3.4 and 3.5

4.2 Articles II VII and XI of the Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Company included in Exhibit 3.6

10.1 Trademark License Agreement for Reality Trademark

10.2 1997 Stock Option Plan as amended

10.3 Amended and Restated Change of Control Agreement between the Company and O.B Parrish dated

October 2005

10.4 Amended and Restated Change of Control Agreement between the Company and Mary Ann Leeper dated

October 2005

10.5 Amended and Restated Change of Control Agreement between the Company and Michael Pope dated

October 2005

10.6 Change of Control Agreement between the Company and Michele Greco dated November 2012 10

10.7 Letter Agreement dated November 2012 between the Company and Michele Greco 10

10.8 First Amendment to Amended and Restated Change of Control Agreement dated as of December 31 2012

between the Company and O.B Parrish 11

10.9 First Amendment to Amended and Restated Change of Control Agreement dated as of December 31 2012

between the Company and Mary Ann Leeper 11

10.10 Consulting Agreement dated as of January 2013 between the Company and Donna Felch 12

10.11 Employment Agreement between the Company and Mary Ann Leeper dated effective as of May 2006

13

10.12 The Female Health Company 2008 Stock Incentive Plan 14

10.13 Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Grant Agreement for The Female Health Company 2008 Stock
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Incentive Plan 15

10.14 Form of Restricted Stock Grant Agreement for The Female Health Company 2008 Stock Incentive Plan

10.15 Second Amended and Restated Loan Agreement dated as of August 2011 between the Company and

Heartland Bank 16

10.16 First Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Loan Agreement dated as of August 12012 between

the Company and Heartland Bank 17

10.17 Second Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Loan Agreement dated as of August 2013

between the Company and Heartland Bank

10.18 Commercial Security Agreement dated as of July 20 2004 between the Company and Heartland Bank 18

10.19 First Amendment to Commercial Security Agreement dated as of July 2010 between the Company and

Heartland Bank 19

10.20 Second Amendment to Commercial Security Agreement dated as of August 2011 between the Company

and Heartland Bank 16

10.21 Share Charge dated as of August 30 2011 between the Company and Heartland Bank 20

21 Subsidiaries of Registrant

23.1 Consent of McGladrey LLP

24.1 Power of Attorney included as part of the signature page hereof

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of ChiefFinancial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 21

101 The following materials from the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K fir the year ended

September 30 2013 formatted in XBRL eXtensible Business Reporting Language Consolidated

Balance Sheets ii Consolidated Statements of Income iiiConsolidated Statements of Stockholders

Equity iv Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and the Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements

Incorporated herein by reference to the Companys Form SB-2 Registration Statement filed on October 19

1999

Incorporated herein by reference to the Companys Form SB-2 Registration Statement filed on September

21 2000

Incorporated by reference herein to the Companys Form SB-2 Registration Statement filed on September
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2002

Incorporated herein by reference to the Companys March 31 2003 Form 0-QSB

Incorporated herein by reference to the Companys March 31 2004 Form 10-QSB

Incorporated by reference to the Companys Form 8-K filed on May 22 2013

Incorporated herein by reference to the Companys 1992 Form 10-KSB

Incorporated herein by reference to the Companys Form S-8 Registration Statement filed on
March 26 2010

Incorporated herein by reference to the Companys September 30 2005 Form 10-KSB

10 Incorporated herein by reference to the Companys Form 8-K filed on November 2012

11 Incorporated by reference to the Companys December 31 2012 Form 10-Q

12 Incorporated by reference to the Companys Form 8-K filed on January 2013

13 Incorporated hereby by reference to the Companys Form 8-K/A filed on February 21 2006

14 Incorporated hereby by reference to the Companys Form 8-K filed on March 31 2008

15 Incorporated herein by reference to the Companys September 30 2009 Form 10-K

16 Incorporated by reference to the Companys June 30 2011 Fonn 10-Q

17 Incorporated by reference to the Companys September 30 2012 Form 10-K

18 Incorporated by reference to the Companys March 31 2010 Form 10-Q

19 Incorporated herein by reference to the Companys June 30 2010 Form 10-Q

20 Incorporated by reference to the Companys September 30 2011 Form 10-K

21 This certification is not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended or incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Exchange Act of 1933 as

amended or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

The response to this portion of Item 15 is submitted as separate section of this report

Financial Statement Schedules
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements
of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Date December 2013

THE FEMALE HEALTH COMPANY

BY Is O.B Parrish

O.B Parrish Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer

BY Is Michele Greco

Michele Greco Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each person whose signature appears below hereby appoints O.B Parrish and Michele Greco and each of

them individually his true and lawful attorney-in-fact with power to act with or without the other and with full

power of substitution and resubstitution in any and all capacities to sign any or all amendments to the Form 10-K

and file the same with all exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith with the Securities and

Exchange Commission granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents
full power and authority to do and perform

each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in and about the premises as fully to all intents and

purposes as he might or could do in person hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and

agents or their substitutes may lawfully cause to be done by virtue hereof

Pursuant to the requirements
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this Report has been signed below by

the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated

Signature
Title Date

Chairman of the Board ChiefExecutive

Is O.B Parrish
Officer and Director

O.B Parrish Principal Executive Officer
December 2013

Is Mary Ann Leeper

Mary Ann Leeper Ph.D Director December 2013

Vice President and ChiefFinancial

Is Michele Greco
Officer Principal Accounting and

Michele Greco Financial Officer
December 2013

Is William Gargiulo Secretary and Director December 2013

William Gargiulo

Is David Bethune Director
December 2013
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David Bethune

________________________
Director December 2013

Stephen Dearholt

Is Donna Feich Director December 2013

Donna Feich

________________________ Director December 2013

Richard Wenninger

Is Mary Margaret Frank Director December 2013

Mary Margaret Frank

________________________
Director December 2013

Andrew Love
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The Female Health Company and Subsidiaries

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements

Document Page No
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting F-i

Report of McGladrey LLP Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm F-2

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30 2013 and 2012 F-3

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended September 30 2013 2012 and 2011 F-4

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity for the years ended September 30 2013 2012

and 2011 F-5 through F-7

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended September 30 2013 2012 and 2011 F-8

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-9 through F-23
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Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting

as defined in Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended The Companys internal

control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance to the Companys management and Board of

Directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements The Companys internal control

over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company

ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

financial statements in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of

the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company and

iii provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use

or disposition of the Companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements

Therefore even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial

statement preparation and presentation Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to

the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of September 30

2013 In making this assessment management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of

the Treadway Commission COSO in Internal Control-Integrated Framework Based on its assessment management

believes that as of September 30 2013 the Companys internal control over financial reporting was effective based on those

criteria

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of September 30 2013 has been audited by McGladrey

LLP an independent registered public accounting firm as stated in their report See Report of Independent Registered

Public Accounting Firm which
appears on page F-2 of this report

December 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders

The Female Health Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Female Health Company and Subsidiaries the

Company as of September 30 2013 and 2012 and the related consolidated statements of income stockholders equity and

cash flows for each of the three years in the three-year period ended September 30 2013 We also have audited The Female

Health Company and Subsidiaries internal control over financial reporting as of September 30 2013 based on criteria

established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission in 1992 The Female Health Company and Subsidiaries management is responsible for these

financial statements for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the

effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Report on Internal

Control over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and an opinion on

the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was

maintained in all material respects Our audits of the financial statements included examining on test basis evidence

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant

estimates made by management and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation Our audit of internal control

over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk

that material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on

the assessed risk Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the

circumstances We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures

that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the

company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or

disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also

projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of The Female Health Company and Subsidiaries as of September 30 2013 and 2012 and the results of its

operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the three-year period ended September 30 2013 in conformity

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America Also in our opinion The Female Health

Company and Subsidiaries maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of

September 30 2013 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in 1992

Is McGladrey LLP

Chicago Illinois

December 2013
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THE FEMALE IIEALIII COMPANY AND USIDIAR1IS

ONSOLIDA lED BAt ANCE SuEt TS

SI PTEMBER 30 013 AND 2012

ASSI IS

orient Assets

PLANt AND EQUIEMENT

Equipment furniture and fixtures

Leasahold impovemnnta

Construction in progress

Lesa accwnulatad cietioo and amortization

Plant and equipment oct

2013

2362lO

78440

24594

514213

2552000

16888465

138458

2012

5295462

7689l7

27369

1458199

624268

15 000

16826215

122336

Deferred income taxes

TOTAL ASfS
1048000 11148000

3427

UJAILfl IFS AND STCKflO1 DERS EQUI TY

Current liabilities

Ac0000ta payzble

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Accrued mpensatmn

TO FAL CURRENT IABIL IT1ES

LON0rFRM IABII IT1LS

Darrad runt

Deferred grant income

Deferred income tant

TOTAl LIABII 11 IfS

Commitments and Contingencies

STOCK HOLDL RS EQUITY

Preferred Stoe1c err shares issued and outst6ding in 2013 or 2012

Common Stock par value $01 per share authorized 38500000 shares issued

30694843 and 10550030 shares and 28 680389 and 28591 201 shares outstanding in

2013 nud 2012 respectively

Additronal paidiri-gapjtin

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Accrenulnted deficit

reasury stock at cost

TOTAL STOCKROLDERS EQUITY
10 Al LIABJLU IFS ANI SI OCKHOL DERS IQUI

306948

$1469478

581519

287 15040

7067910

31402957

35 169 953

305500

66760907

58L519

35594455

6672243

24218l90

446427
rsrc

See notes to consolidated financial statemcnt

Cgsb

Accounts receivable net of allowance for doubtful ace unts of $1 3181 for 2013 and

$41 625 for 2012

lnccrnie tax reeivbl

Inventory net

Prcpad expentes ta3d other cwent ntaeta

Deterred income taxes

TOTAL CUUUfN2 ASBTS

Other assetS

8922430

449854

323147

2726171

2094830

3969 888

322814

268 768

2211591

349876

904049 17753.27

1540457 1120302

062693 2964812

3407 199 5860441

66799 90902

57819 62680

235179 104244

3766996 622823



LIII FEMALE HEALFH COMPANY AND S3 BSIDIARII

ONSOL1DAIFD STAFIMLNTS OF INCOMI

YEARS NDLD SEPTEMBER 30 2013 2012 and 2011

See notes to consolidated financial statemen

2013

11 31456778

395242O

17504358

221718

7493043

7714761

9789597

245545

101288

144257

ci933854

440744
14342598

051

28376 607

050

28726478

026

2012

35033897

14412884

20621013

52949

9628134

9681083

109 39.930

M2
148269

147 907

0792023

4507298

15299 321

0.55

27693 721

053

28933 144

022

2011

18563102

8699912

9865190

32858

4336990

69848

3295342

2109

61 258

63367

3231973

2167076

5399 051

020

27 287342

019

28971011

020

Net revenues

cost of sales

Oros roit

OperatIng expenstta

Advertising

Seiltng general and adminiattative

Iotal operating expenses

Operating income

Nonmperating income expense

Interest and other income expense

loreign currency transaction loss

Fetal nonoperating income expense

Income betor income taxes

income tax benetit

Net income

Net inconw per basic common share on standing

Basic weighted average common shares outstanding

Net income per diluted common share outstanding

Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding

Cash dividends declared per common share
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FHE FEMALE HEAL 111 COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIFS

CONSOL1DAfE STATIMEN1S 01 STOCKI1 II DF RS EQUIEY

YF ARS ENDED SEP IEMBLR 2013 2012 and 2011

Accumulated

dividends
196645 6196 64

Net ittume artd

fn9otSe 1$M21 1M21
Balance at

September 30 2012 30550 00 305 00 66 6090 5815195 35 5944555 72243 24 218 90jflna aflan wm

Additio tal

Preferred onis ion Stock

Stock Shares Amount apital

Other

Paid it Comprehensive Accumulated

Loss Deticit

Stuck

at Cost

Issuance 011 002

shates of ommon
Stock upon

xerclse of

iota

ssarrants It 000

Issuance

ut 809S sliais

of omnion Stock

upon cashless

exercise of

557 750 options

Common stock

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Till \1.F hAl COMP \NY AND SI BSIDIRftS
CONSOLIDATFD FEMEN IS OF CAS illOWS
YEARS END SIP MBI 2013 10 and 2111

OPLR \1 IONS

Not income

Adjustments to reconcile net mci me to net cash pm Os ided by

oper itmg clii ities

iepmeciation and amortization

Am rtmiation of defer red mnconie from grint BL
Provision lEr obsolete inventory

Pros isbn br had debts

Interest added to certificate of deposit

Sharehased compensation

Deferred income taxes

loss on disposal of xed iet
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

kccounts receis able

Income tax receivable

Inventories

Prepaid expenses tad other assets

Accounts Payable

Accrued
expenses and other cur eat liabilities

Net cash provided by operating act mimes

1434595

556304

24831

6662
180

27 609

5259065
940

490372

51071

994556

93933

871278

1627592

l79308l

599 321

46 44
24831

128360

47 375

252
842 312

4893933

11230

005819

1369

439969

332 977

3531

2842500

10356 054

539905I

464909

2483l

1/7726

6036

3223
796151

2464050

149 0i8

28 179

9924
10618
490398

30959
968 155

IN\ ES I\ llYl ill

Proceeds from tedemptmon of certif cute of dep sit

Capital expenditures

Net cash used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVItll

Payments on capital lease
obligatmo is

Proceeds from exercise of common stock warrants

Purchases of common stock fuir treasury shares

Faxes paid in lieu of shares

Dividends paid on common stock

Net cash used in financing activities

13 037

13000

395 667 289611
21 7794%t

191675

8660266

Net increase cash

ish at beginning ovcar

CASH AT END YEAR

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow inlet mi lion

Cash payments luir income taxes

Schudulo of nuncash ficuiicuig and nvosling activities

Dms idends
sy

able

Reduction ol accrued expense upon issuance of shares

fixed assct additions in accounts ayahe at ar end

3626 968

295462

8922430

345 05

12330

200088

1041612

25850

5295462

926434

19323

174 185

124802

1330496

2923351

4253850

16100

221970

Sec note 10 co isolidated linammcmal latc ncnl

2013 2012 2011

64 127

302198 8303
302198 654l 761

46 28
46 287

12999

31063

5545 310

5591 372

468248

78639151
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Ihe Female Health Company and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies continued

progi ams In fiscal year our significant customer was the United Nations Population Fund NlPA In

fiscal year 2012 our significant customers were NI PA John Snow Inc. facilitator of SAl Di project

FAlD and Sckunjato Investments Coiporation FY td Sekunjalo In fiscal yr ar 2011 significant

customeis were USAID and UN1 PA No other single customei accounted fbi more than 10 percent of unit sales

during those periods

Percentage of nit Sales

Significant Customers 2013 2012 2011

LJNflA 62% 40%
IJSAII

25 26

Sekunjalo 20

Iota Percentage of fit Sales

Less than It percent of unit sales

Jns entoiy Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market he cost is deteI mined
using

the first in first out

Fit method Ins ento ies are so written down foi managements estimates of product which will not sell pi ior

to its expiration date Wrtte dow ns of ins itories stablish new cost basis which is not increased loi future

increases in the inaiket value of in entoiies or changes in estimated obsolescence

loreigii curienft translation and operations Effective October 2009 the Company determined that there were

stgnifieaiit eliaugcs in facts and ciicuinstances triggering an es aluatton of its subsidiaries lunetional currency he

evaluation indicated that the dollar is the currency with the most significant influence upoi the suhsidiaiies

Because all of the ompanys subsidiarys future sales and cash flows would be denominated in .5 dollars

ILl low tug the October 2009 cessation of ptoduction the Company first generation product the

subsidiary adopted the .S dollar is its functional
currency rfiecttve October 2009 As the Malaysia subsidiary is

diiect and integral component of the parents operations it too adopted the dollai as its functional

currency as of October 2009 lie consistr nt use of the 115 dollar as functional
currency aer ss the ompans

reduces its foreign currency risk md stabilizes its
opeiating results The Company recognized foreign currency

transaction losses of $101288 $148269 and $61 258 hr the sears ended September 30 2013 2012 and 2011
respectis ely ftc cumulative foreign currency translation loss included in accumulated other co vmprelienstvr loss

was 55815 19 as of September 2013 and 2012 Assets located outside of the U.S totaled approximately
SI 5000000 and SI 4000 000 at Sc ptemher 30 2013 and 2012 respectis ely

Lquiptnent furtiiture arid fixtures Depreciation and amortization are computed rising primarily the straightline
method Depreciation arid amortization are ccmpttted over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets which

range as follows

Manutucturing equipment 11 year
Office equipnient

years

Fumiture and fxtutes
10 years

Depreciation on lcascd assets is computed over the lesser of the remaining lease term or the estimat useful lives of

the assets Depieciat on on leased assets is included with depreciation on owned assets

Patetits and tiademnarks FC2 patents have been issued by the United States Europe Canada Australia South

Africa the Peoples Republic ofCi ma Japan Mexico ai the African Regional Intellectual Property Organization

ARIPO which includes Botswan Gambia Ghana Kenya Lesotho Malawi Mozambique Namibia Sierra

Leone Sudan Swaziland Fanzani Uganda Zambia and Zimbabwe urther the Friropean patent for FC2 has

been validated in the following cou itries Aust in Belgium Bulgaria Switzerland Republic ol yprus zech

Republic Germany Denmark Istoma Spain Finland france nited Kingdom Greece lltingary Ireland Italy

uxemhourg Monaco Netherlands Portugal Romania Sweden Slovenia Slovakia and Turkey lie patents
cover the key aspects 0f inluding its ovem all design md nianufhcmuring process In addition pat nt

applications for C2 are pending in numbem of other coutitries atound the world here can be no issurance that

10



Fh liii ip dSuhidiic

audited enuit

\i itt Iv it idSipiilk.ant coantmPohcies ontunued

sit Ii in si Plote ion iv instfttf% at prodt ftntftrit ilk kfttsdun%

ti

it ii ct it in nit tnt unil toidon in hIn at twthrinon th

Ii 1k tIn ti cit %r trw1Ouunt cirwrbtoiiaroundhWCIIICPrtt%t

sut ti ii ik It ii oinpiss
l4dicr Uadftti indicti

fit Ft ii
Slit etpicxcthathastt ptnu liii itt usof

rr nd II htsail ste ihetilptl5tt tk.tkp radt etu andknn

fun rn pi
oc ttchnoiogit.s fit4 further rioted tompetiti ft jo ifton

ii lit \S Topic isa 1/ca at cmctfl sri Ott losuses sthc.i

lit itt Ii at uk nitst iii 1w In atd epind di lnues aLoud lair due

ii
..a th iii on usa ulasetsaici ibillifts tic hrcftlslsbaMd

ii ci dt lit iss ot iL lilies Lcst.I prosid the ito teliabi incssui of

iifi gc.ncntpidm nt

Ss ii iabthtit lIftbtfC lit Curs flu u.nr goi nonaec.tauinf

isl tui tk.nt as stoli iftstiu.tftd cat at ieW in mind

ii crnans ha hninusi institi iest or thic.t lit calfliflf sulue is

ash c.i. to unity noiideditob tictompais IC bu fn
on ut si ci vU ndcdinreqUnti and only or w.a ioisshctnhuia

is tlut tqui ti ntt tiwftnstcii it prositiotfund

luittb tn ion litec.v suehas bitnotiirut dto aren dot titteaflet ii

in eprtc c.tshti itt. ntiS hstisS54 indSIoS tot ttic

in ill rtt ly nih nc.lukliiei hot he ittOfliVfi5i
biiuicsh ts

dran inouesfnmdi Dciii him ast.hilI no fund BLItc

lii otofc.tpi iletprdilure it 1tMt tj.mu.t The tnderisiug

ihdvpvapdHl ft mlii it dc ndbttz

in tienink fstht ioductrnthal cunt 11 enntrc.c is

tuthu repcfttls cpc.ndit tot tie pioptc.t 1ieonipar

itd th pin tin nstchint and tonsets dim to dctetmai hot It

.si td it nai utli hi. niIuc.t lhneiratloni tec.ointing

ci in or sc.rrnc tthrns4nd i.c.Iosur oiGoscinmti %sitancctolurthu upçort

tiui trca tic iii it russ ii npaiydicc.at
dii iaredthftp mini.. to

tt it ft ft ol ikitt.d htrxot.ct ttitproud tt is sster

pat urn srtg ftd II ap at ndturt.st rftdet rut mdrth.tsa4tc

qr Ut th ii snlasc.ts

unu tit lb tkbcec ttnp nauon pei.i
t.cuW

ii Is ii puclbtsc ontix an tat tint

Ut nc

ii uta

fri ft ism

if Jill htnfi ii

tn
ft lift

ii ii

tst

ft

01 ts hen iOnnftI ii ft pta sinew IhftamnmtlcJst

dS tc.ni i3 no HI ol SI /4 intl 19 respc.tb Iy

Ii it iii tpc.n ts nut con di. asiuftululu ii

ft sI Iii
dii

.i tit
ci mis

ti bt I.iiil

ittd tpiti

ti at

nt .t

ii is
ci

liii ii

it ry

it

lid

flint

ii .i rt
iii

is 11 ol
cli

ti tt itt

iii

rnt.d

Itt ed intl iui

tat
iii

tttst It

tat
cm lrompndtt.t alc.s shcnc.ad otthefoihwinoftontitlfl

kh%r aI thcreisali tdpticc an dli tibibty isrttscnabis

sentcluuiIIk us tic iIftIlCtuaIpiperty mdi atian einftn scithils

tinin inut Li lilt mthoi dtc ft4pf%urFit

did tndtl nja sr cc sc.saroyils -c.toutht tuirbucfunts

idttv tnt oft cCtits lid at mans ifli out. ndic

ik bs tIll iltvrft t.nx.wt 21 anISI ftitii

rcp Ii indisi Itdd nnirst.nut onthi iu.onpsn tg

IcC ipn itt

ii Ifti in

It

itU tilt

tit

ml

Ui at

aid if

Li

iii
lift

luts

II



Ihe Female Health ompany and Subsidiaries

\otes to onsolidatul Financial Statements

ote \ature of Business and Significant Accounling Polkies continued

\ds ernsin he Companys pohes is to expense advertising costs as incuiied Ads
erasing costs ss eic IS

552949 and 12 88 fo the ears ended Set tember 10 13 12 and 2011 respeetis ely

Income taxes he Con pany files separate icome tax returns for its tbieign subsidiaries
opie 40 Iequues

recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities fin the expected future tax consequences of escort that hie en
included in the fin mcml stateincnts or tax returns nder this method defened tax isseis and liabilities are

determined based on the diflgiences between the fin in ml statements and tax bases 01 issets and liabilities using
enacted tax iates in elkct for the year in which the dfierenecs are expected to rever DefcrrLd tax assets aie also

provided for carrytbiss aids for inc ome tax purposes In addaion the amount of ans futui tax hen fits is reduced by

valuation illosvanee to the exten such benefits are not expected to be realized

Earnirygs per share PS Basic PS is conir uted by lix iding net income by th ss eghted as ciag number of

comniori shares outstanding for the period Eiluted PS computed by dix iding net income by thc xs eighted

is ciage numbei of common share ouisianding durine the pci iod after giving etfeet ali diluti potential ccniman
shares that were outstanding during the pcrioc EJilutis potential conimnon shaies consist of the ncieniental

common shares issu ible upon the mercise if stock options and war rants and uris ested shares granted to employees
and directoi

Other comprehensive income Sc ount ig prmeiples te icral ly require that recognized res ernie expenses ains and

losses he included in net incornc Althoug certain changes in assets and liibilitie such Is toreign currency
translation adjustments are reported as sepaIate component of tIre equity eetion of the accompanying
consolidated balance slicers these items ilong ith nc inconie arc components of coinpreliensis income

he irent company arid its suhsrdr routinely purchase inxeutorv produced by its Mala sia subsidiary
br alc to their rrnpectixL cusOiui Diem ii terconrjxuy trade 2ccounts are cli ninated in consoliatiou he

Companys policy md intc ntis to settle the intercompany trade account on err rent basis Since the and

Malaysia subsidiaries
adopted the dollar their functional currencies eftective October 2009 no foreign

currency gains or losses fiom
intercompany tr ide are rec gnized In fiscal 201 2012 and 2111 coniprehensis

income is equivalent to the reported net in orre

Reclassifications Certain items the 201 ard 2011 consolidated financial statements ha been icc lassified to

conform to the 2011 presentation

ote Earnings per Share

Basic UPS is eoinpued by drs rdin nei incon by the si erghted axeiage number of common shares outstrumding foi

the period Diluted PS is computed by dix mdirmg net ii come by the xx erghted as erage number of common shires

outstanding clur ing the period afier gis ing effect to nI dil itise potential conimori shares that crc outstandino during

the pe md Dilurive potential common shares consist of the inc reinental common shares issuable upon the exercise

ot stock options arid warrants and tins erted shares granted to erxiploy ees

Year Ended Septemtem 30
Denominator 2013 2012 2011

Weighted avet age common shares outstandtng basic 28376607 169172 27287342
Net elfect of dilutive sccunrties

Optiotms 162195 93600 243222

Warrants 39823 59 191

Unvestod restrreted shares 187676 28600Q 381250
fotal net effect of dilutive securities 349871 1239 423 683669

Weighted average common shares outstanding diluted 28726478 28933144 282971011

Ineormie per common share basic 51 055 20

Income
per common share diluted 50 053 019

All the outstanding xx arra its arid stock options were included in the compnmiatmorm cit diluted net lccme per share for

the ci ended Septc mher 1113 and 20

12
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The lemak Health ompan and Subsidiaries

Notes to onsobdated Hnancial Statements

Note Operating eases and Rental Expense continued

he ompany leases 16000 squ ire Ott 0f manufacturing space in Sciangor Malaysia under lease that

requires monthly payments of approximately 000 through September 2016 and may be renesse at the option of

the Company fhr an additional thrre year term Company also leases II 000 squarc feet of \sarehouse
space

in

Selangor Malaysia under lease that
requires mont fly payments of approximately S4000 through Fehruar

2014 and may he renessed at the option of the ompany for an additional one year term

The ompany also leases equipment under number of lease agreements ss hicli
expire at various dates through inc

2017 aggregate monthly rental was 5462 at Septem er 30 2013 Details of operating lease
expense including

real estate taxes and insurance for the years ended September 30 2013 201 and II are as

2013 2012 2011

nactory and oIfiue 1eass 404678 397073 414380
Other 5541 824 88
Total 410219 401897

uture minimum pay ments under leases consist of the fol owing as of September 30 13

Operating

eases

2014 402161
2015 4a93
2016 446542
2017 314893

2018 376864

lhereafter 10 7222

otal mrnitnum lease payments 2147677

Note Income axes

The ompany accounts for inconu taxes usin the liability method which requirts the recognition of deferred tax

assets or liabilities for the 1axe11b red temporary differer ces heteen the financial repoiting and tex bases ot assets

and liabilities and for net operatin loss and tax credit carryforwards

Company completes detailed analy sis of its deferred income tax valuation allowance on an annual basis or

more frequently if information comes to our attention that would indicate that res ision to its estimates is necessary

in evaluating the Companys ability to realize its deferred tax assets management considers all avai able positive

and negative evidence on country by ountry basis including past operating results and forecast ol future taxable

mnconir In determining future taxable income management makes assumptions fhrecast fdderil and state

U.K and Malaysia operating income the reversal of temporary differences and the implementation ot any feasible

arid prudent tax planning strategies Ihese assumptions re luire significant judgment regarding the forecasts ofthe

future taxable income in each tax jurisdiction and are consistent with the ecasts used to manage the Coniparis
business It should he noted that the Company iealiied significant losses through 2005 on consolidated basis Since

fiscal year 2006 the Company has consistently generated taxable income on consolidated basis pros iding

reasonable future period ui which the Company can reasonably expect to generate taxable mcomne In managements

analysis to dctermmne the amount of the deferred tax asset to recognize management projected futur taxable income

the subsequent ten years for eac tax jurisdiction

Although management uses the hes information as ailable it rs reasonably possible that the estinutes used by the

ompany will be materialiy different from the mctual iesu ts hese differences could have matrral effect on the

Compam future results of opemanions and financial condition

II
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Fhe Female Health Company and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note Income continued

Significant omponents of the Cot ipan deterred tax assets and liabilities are as lollows at Septet iber 10 and

12

Deferred ax Assets

Federal net operating loss cartyfot wards

State net operating loss carryforwards

AM credit carrytbtard

Foreign net peratmg loss carnyforwards

Foreign oapttal allowance UK
cCi ned expenses

Other net Malaysia

Othei net

Gross deferned tax assets

valuation alloss ance for defet red tax assets

Net deferred tax assets

leferred Tax Liabilities

Foreign capital allowance Malaysia

Net deterred tax assets

8378000

1636 000

152000

1480 000

171000

48000

000
25900000

12600000

13300000

lie deferred tax amounts has fern classified in the accompan ing consolidated balance sheets as follows

Current assetS 13

uIrent assets

otal current assets

Longterm assets

ong tenu assets UK
otal long4erm assets

ong4errn liability Malaysta

2012

1802000

350000

2152000

6.197001

495 1000

11148000

194244
13105 56

ftc change in the saluation allowance fhr dell med tax assets for the years ended Septenther 10 is as falloss

Fhe valuation allowance decreasd by 89 89 00t 89 345000 and 84696 000 for the years ended Sepiemhei 10

2013 2012 and 2011 nespectis ely Undei the nternal Res cane Code certain ow neiship changes including the prior

issuance of preferred stock the pm blic olferii of common stock and the exeicise of common st ck warr ints and

options may subject the Company to annual limitationv on the utilization of its net operating loss carry forward

Under the Inland Res cone statutes cci tam triggering esents may subtect the ompany to limitations on thc

Litili/ation of its net operating loss carryfom ard in the As of September 10 2011 management does riot

hcliese any limitations haxe occurred

AS Fopic /40 prescnihes recogi ition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition

and measurement of tax posit ion taken oi expected to be taken ni tax return ASC fopic 740 tIes eloped two

step process to evaluate tax position and also provides guidance on dmrecognition classification interest and

penalties accounting iii interim rciiods discios ire and transition lie Coiiipaiiy has iiot recorded ci iescrvc for any

tax positions for which the ultimall deductibility is highly certain hut tbr which there is uncertainty about the timing

2013

6516000

636 000

269 000

12 653000

95000

90000

23018

44001

21326018

2703000

18623018

258197

18364821

194244
13 105 56

2013

2074000

478001

2552000

593/000

10111000

16048 000

235179

i836482

Balanc at Charged to Costs Balance at

\ear Octolxr and Expenses Deductions/Other September30

2011 26741000 500000 2196000 22045000
2012 22 045 000 4900000 4545000 12600000
2013 12600000 5300000 4597000 2703000
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Fhe Female Health Company and Subsidiaiies

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ote Equity and Sharebased Payments continued

Option Activity

he following table summarizes the stock options outstanding and exercisable at September 30 201

Weighted Average

Remaining Aggregate

Exercise Price Contractual Term Intrinsic

Shares Per Share years Value

Outstanding at Septnmber 30 2010 lO4000 L$

Granted

orfeitad

Outstanding at Saptember 312011 161

Granted

70 44

Forfeited

Outstanding at Saptenther 30 2012 257

Granted

Exerulsed 362$1 0$

Forfeited

Outstanding at September 30 2013 240000 264 4$ L73 1900

Fxercisable on September30 2013 240000 L64 408 1131900

During the year ended September 30 2013 stock option holders exercised 36250 stock options using the cashkss

exercise option available under the plan which entitled thm to 28172 shares of common stock During the year

ended September 30 2012 stock option holders exercism 1557750 stock options using the cashless cxercise

option available under the plan whi entitled them to 116601 shares of common stock Some option
holders

surrendered 363035 of the shares due them in payment of taxes bringing the net number of sharcs issued to

802982 No stock options were exrcised during fiscal year 2011

Fhe aggregate intrinsic value in the table above is before income taxes based on the Company closing stock price

of $9 86 on the last day of business for the peiiod ended Seprember 30 201 The total intrinsic value of options

exercised duing the years ended September 30 2013 and 2012 was approximately $272000 and $6888 000

respectix ely

here was no uniccognized compensation cos1 for stock options as of September 30 2013 Ihe deferted tax asset

and iealized tax benefit from stmk options exercised and othei sharmbased payments oi the years cnded September

30 2013 2012 and 7011 was not recognized based on the Companys election of the with and without approach

Restricted Stock

the ompany issues restricted stock to employees directors and consultants Such issuances may have vcsting

pcriods that range from one to three years In addition the Company has issued stock awards to certain employees

that pros ide hr future issuance con ingent on continued nployment for periods that range from one to three years
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he Female Health Company and Subsidiru ies

Notes to Consolidated financial Statements

Note Stock Repurchase Pr gram

Company Stock Repurchase Program vis announced on January 17 2007 initiation the plan terms

specificd that up to 1000 000 sliar of its Lommon stock could be purchased during the subsequen ta cisc months

Subsequently the Board has amnded the plan number of times to both extend its tcrm and increase the maximum

number of shares which could he repurchased urrently the plan allosss fbi maximum mepurchase of up to

000 000 shares through the period ending 1cembcr 31 2013 From the programs onset through September 30

2013 the tot ii numbem of shares iepurchased by the ompany is 2014454 he Stock Repurchase Program

aurhoi aes purchases in privately negotiated tr actions as well as in the open market In Octob 7008 the

Companys Board of Directois autf onied mepurchases in rivaie transactions tinder the Stock Repurchase Program

of shares issued under the Companys equity compensation plans to directors employees and oilier sc rvicc provideis

at the maikef price on the effective date of the repurchase request otal iepurclivses under this provision currently

are limited to an aggregvte of 450000 shares pr calendar year and to maximum of 50 000 shares annually per

individual Private repurchase tranactions for fiscal year 701 2012 and 011 vere 45625 31000 and 83

shares respectively open market epurchase rarisactions foi fiscal year 2013 201 arid II vs crc 10000

000 and shares respectively

014454 985 546

014454
___

9554

Issuer Purchases of Equity

Securities Details treasury Stock Purchases to Iate through September30 2013

rotal Average Aggregate Number Maximum Number

Number Price Paid of Shares Purchased of Sb res that Ma
of Shares Per As Part of Publicly Yet be Purchased

Purchased

Octohcr 2110 September 30

2013

October 2012 Se temhcm 30

55678 7.11

fotal 2014454 51
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fhe Female Health Company and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ote 11 Contingent Liabilities

ftc testing manufacturing and
marketing of consumer products by the Company entail an inheient risk that product

liability cia ms will be asserted ainst the rnpan he Company maintains product liability insurance coveragetbr claims arising horn the use its products The ccs crage amount is curientlv $5 million for BCs consumerhealth care product

Note 12 Dividends

Beginning Iebrua 16 2010 through Scpteir her 30 1013 the ompany has paid 15
quarterly cash dividends the

first were paid at quarterly rate per share of $005 through February 2012 were paid at quaerly rate
pcishare of $006 from May 92012 through Frbruary 62013 and were paid at quarterly rate per sharc of $007May 2013 through September 30 2013 Cumulative dividends paid totaled $233 million thiough September 302013 On October 2013 the Companys Board of Directors declared quaerly cash dividend of $007

per shareThe ompany paid from its cash on hand pproximately $2 million
pursuant to the dividend on November2013 to stockholders of record as of October 10 2013 otal dividends paid were approximately million $62

million and $5.5 million in 2013 2012 and 2011 respect vely

Any future quarterly dividends and the record date for such dividends will be approsed each quarter by the

Companys Board of Directors and announced by the Company Payment of
any future dividends is at the discrctiori

of the Board of Directors and the ompany mr not have sufficient cash flows to pay dividends
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